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Renewable energy - ESG Goals:

In line with the current requirements of ESG (Environmental, Social and Governance), 
the Company is in the process of increasing the Solar Plant Capacity from 500 KW to 908 
KW at a cost of Rs. 210 Lakhs and it is commissioned in this Financial Year and this will 
result in further reduction of power costs. This is in addition to the existing wind energy 
assets.

Exports Foot Print:

VTM has Export foot prints at eight Countries.

The company ventured into Home Textile Products. 

Due to the addition of new Home Textile Products the company is able to garner additional 
Exports of Rs. 53.44 crores making the company’s total export turnover at Rs. 98.48 crores. 

Imports are at Rs. 7.56 crores in the Financial Year 2023-24.

Imports figures consist of 10 Picanol Air Jet Looms imported at a cost of Rs. 7.12 crores, rest of 
the imports of Rs. 0.44  crores comprise of spares parts and consumables. 
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the Seventy Seventh Annual General Meeting of the Members of 
the Company will be held at the Registered Office of the Company at Sulakarai, Virudhunagar on 
Wednesday, the 24th of July, 2024 at 10.00 A.M to transact the following business.

AGENDA

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS:

Item No.1 - Adoption of Financial Statements

To receive, consider, and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet of the Company as of 31st March 2024, 
the Profit & Loss Statement for the year ended on that date, and the reports of the Directors and 
the Auditors thereon.

Item No.2 - To declare a dividend on equity shares.

Item No.3 - Re-appointment of Sri RM.Somasundaram, Director.

To appoint a Director in place of Sri RM Somasundaram, who retires by rotation and being 
eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS:

Item No. 4 – Ratification of Cost Auditor Remuneration:

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution as an ordinary resolution:

Resolved that subject to provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 14 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions thereon, the 
fees of Rs.50,000/- payable to the Cost Auditor Mr. A.N. Raman for auditing the cost records 
and furnishing of report thereon for the Financial Year 2024-25 as recommended by the Audit 
Committee and approved by the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby ratified.

I.	 IMPORTANT NOTES:

1.	 The Register of Members and the Share Transfer books of the Company will remain closed 
from 12th July 2024 to 24th  July, 2024 (both days inclusive) for annual closing, and 
dividend purpose.

2.	 The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, which 
sets out details relating to Special Business at the meeting, is annexed hereto.



5

LIMITEDVTM

3.	 A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend 
and vote instead of himself. Such a Proxy need not be a member of the Company.

	 The instrument of Proxy to be effective, should be deposited at the Registered Office of the 
Company, duly completed and signed, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of 
the meeting. A Proxy Form is sent herewith. Proxies submitted on behalf of the companies, 
societies, etc., must be supported by an appropriate resolution/authority, as applicable.

4.	 Members holding shares in electronic form are hereby informed that bank particulars 
registered against their respective depository accounts will be used by the Company for 
payment of dividends. The Company or its Registrars cannot act on any request received 
directly from the Members holding shares in electronic form for any change of bank 
particulars or bank mandates. Such changes are to be advised only to the Depository 
Participant of the Members. Members holding shares in physical form and desirous of 
either registering bank particulars or changing bank particulars already registered against 
their respective folios for payment of dividends are requested to write to the Company.

5.	 Members are requested to note that the dividends not encashed or remaining unclaimed for 
a period of seven years from the date of transfer to the Unpaid Dividend Account shall be 
transferred u/s. 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund (IEPF) established under Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, pursuant 
to the provisions of Section 124 of the Act and IEPF Rules, all shares on which dividend 
has not been paid or claimed for seven consecutive years or more shall be transferred to 
IEPF Authority as notified by the MCA.

6.	 The Members/Claimants whose shares, and unclaimed dividend have been transferred to 
IEPF may claim the shares or apply for a refund by making an application to IEPF Authority 
in Form IEPF-5 (available on www.iepf.gov.in) along with the requisite fee as decided by it 
from time to time. The Member/Claimant can file only one consolidated claim in a financial 
year as per the IEPF Rules. 

7.	 Members who have not encashed their dividend warrants for the earlier financial years are 
requested to make their claim on or before the due date/s for such transfer. The members 
can claim with the Company in respect of the dividends of years that are lying in the 
Unpaid Dividend Account of the Company. 

8.	 Members are requested to note that pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013, SEBI Listing Regulations, and the IEPF Rules, all such shares in respect of which 
dividends have not been paid or claimed for seven consecutive years or more are also 
required to be transferred to IEPF. The Company is taking steps to send individual notices 
to the concerned shareholders and to publish a public notice to shareholders under the IEPF 
Rules in this regard.
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9.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of 
a Permanent Account Number (PAN), e-mail id, and bank details, besides the Mobile 
phone number by every participant in the securities market. Members holding shares 
in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their Depository 
Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding 
shares in physical form can submit their PAN and other above-mentioned details to 
the Company.

10.	 Details required under Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements), Regulations, 2015 in respect of the Directors seeking appointment/re-
appointment at the Annual General Meeting, forms an integral part of the notice. The 
Directors have furnished the requisite declarations for their appointment/re-appointment.

11.	 An electronic copy of the Annual Report for the year 2023-24 is being sent to all the 
members whose email IDs are registered with the Company/Depository Participant(s) for 
communication purposes unless any member has requested a hard copy of the same.

12.	 An electronic copy of the Notice of the 77th Annual General Meeting of the Company inter 
alia indicating the process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy 
Form is being sent to all the members whose email IDs are registered with the Company/
Depository Participants(s) for communication purposes unless any member has requested 
for a hard copy of the same. For members who have not registered their email address, 
physical copies of the Notice of the 77th Annual General Meeting of the Company inter alia 
indicating the process and manner of e-voting along with the Attendance Slip and Proxy 
Form are being sent in the permitted mode.

13.	 Members may also note that the Notice of the 77th Annual General Meeting and the 
Annual Report for the year 2023-24 will also be available on the Company’s website  
www.vtmill.com for their download. 

14.	 The physical copies of the aforesaid documents will also be available at the Company’s 
Registered Office in Sulakarai, Virudhunagar for inspection during normal business hours 
on working days. Even after registering for e-communication, members are entitled to 
receive such communication in physical form, upon requesting the same, by post free of 
cost. For any communication, the shareholders may also send requests to the Company’s 
email id: complianceofficer@vtmill.com.

15.	 Voting through electronic means

1.	 In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 
20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company is 
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pleased to provide members facility to exercise their right to vote at the 77th Annual 
General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be transacted 
through e-Voting Services provided by KFin Technologies Ltd.

Instructions and other information relating to e-voting are as under:

A)	 In case a Member receives an email from KFinTechnologies Ltd [for Members whose 
email Ids are registered with the Company/Depository Participant(s)]:

i)	 Launch internet browser by typing the URL: https://evoting.kfintech.comin the 
address bar and click on “Enter”. The home screen will be displayed then click on 
the shareholders icon on the homepage.

ii)	 Enter the login credentials (i.e. User ID and password mentioned overleaf). Your 
Folio No./DPID – Client ID will be your User ID. However, if you are already 
registered with KFin Technologies Ltd for E-voting, you can use your existing User 
ID and password for casting your vote.

iii)	 After entering these details appropriately, click on “LOGIN”.

iv)     	You will now reach the password change menu wherein you are required to 
mandatorily change your password. The new password shall comprise minimum 
characters with at least one upper case (A-Z), one lower case (a-z), one numeric  
(0-9), and a special character (@#$.etc). The system will prompt you to change your 
password and update your contact details like mobile number, and email ID. etc., on 
first login. You may also enter a secret question and answer of your choice to retrieve 
the password and you take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

v)	 You need to login again with the new credentials.

vi)	 On successful login, the system will prompt you to select the E-Voting Event Number 
for VTM Limited.

vii)	 On the voting page enter the number of shares (which represents the number of votes) 
as on the cut-off date under each of the headings of the resolution and cast your vote 
by choosing the “FOR/ AGAINST” option or you may partially enter any number 
in “FOR” and partially in “AGAINST” but the total number in “FOR/AGAINST” 
taken together should not exceed your total shareholding as mentioned overleaf. You 
may also choose the option “ABSTAIN” and the shares held will not be counted 
under either head. Option “FOR” implies assent to the resolution and “AGAINST” 
implies dissent to the resolution.
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viii)	 Members holding multiple folios/demat accounts shall choose the voting process 
separately for each of the folios/demat accounts.

ix)	 Voting must be done for each item of the Notice separately. In case you do not desire 
to cast your vote on any specific item, it will be treated as abstained.

x)	 You may then cast your vote by selecting an appropriate option and clicking on 
“Submit”.

xi)	 A confirmation box will be displayed Click “OK” to confirm else “CANCEL” to 
modify. Once you confirm, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. During the 
voting period, Members can login any number of times till they have voted on the 
Resolution(s).

xii)	 Corporate/Institutional Members (i.e other than Individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) 
are also required to send a scanned certified true copy (PDF Format) of the 
Board Resolution / Authority Letter, etc., together with an attested specimen 
signature(s) of the duly authorized representative(s), to the Scrutinizer at e-mail ID: 
rsachida@yahoo.co.in. They may also upload the same in the E-voting module in 
their login. The scanned image of the above-mentioned documents should be in the 
naming format “Corporate Name_EVENT NO.”

B)	 In case a Member receives physical copy of the Annual General Meeting Notice by post [for 
members whose Email IDs are not registered with the Company/Depository Participant(s)] 
can also vote using the e-voting method.

i.	 User ID and initial password are provided overleaf.

ii.	 Please follow all steps from Sr.No.(i) to (xii) as mentioned in (A) above, to cast your 
vote.

2.	 Once the vote on a resolution is cast by a Member, the Member shall not be allowed to 
change it subsequently. Further, the Members who have cast their vote electronically shall 
not be allowed to vote again at the Meeting.

3.	 In case of any query about E-voting, please visit the Help & FAQs section available at KFin 
Technologies Ltd.’s website https://evoting.kfintech.com.

4.	 The facility for voting through electronic means (Ballot) shall be made available at the 
Annual General Meeting (AGM) and the members attending AGM who have not cast their 
vote by remote E-voting shall be able to vote at the AGM through “Ballot”.
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5.	 The members who have cast their vote by remote E-voting may also attend AGM but shall 
not be entitled to cast their vote again.

6.	 The Board of Directors has appointed Mr.S.Ramalingam,Practising Company Secretary 
(Membership No.61773) as a Scrutinizer to scrutinize the E-voting process in a fair and 
transparent manner.

7.     	 The voting rights of the Members shall be in proportion to the paid-up value of their shares 
in the equity capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being  12th July, 2024.

8.	 A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial 
owners maintained by the depositories at the close of business hours on 12th July 2024 
shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote E-voting/ballot.

	 The e-voting period starts on 19th July, 2024 (9:00 am) and ends on 23rd July, 2024  
(6:00 pm).

9.	 Any person who becomes member of the Company after despatch of the Notice of the 
meeting and holding shares as on the cut-off date may obtain the User Id and password  in 
the manner as mentioned below :

a.	 If the mobile number of the Member is registered against Folio No./ DPID - Client 
ID, the member may send SMS:

	 MYEPWD<space> E-Voting Event Number+Folio No. or DPID - Client ID to  
+91-9212993399 Example for NSDL: MYEPWD<SPACE>IN12345612345678

	 Example for CDSL: MYEPWD<SPACE>1402345612345678

	 Example for Physical: MYEPWD<SPACE> XXXX1234567890

b.	 If e-mail address or mobile number of the Member is registered against Folio No./
DPID-Client ID, then on the home page of https://evoting.kfintech.com/login.aspx, 
the member may click “Forgot Password” and enter Folio No. or DPID - Client ID 
and PAN to generate a password.

c.	 Member may Call KFintech’s Toll free number 1800-309-4001

d.	 Member may send an e-mail request to evoting@kfintech.com

10.	 However, if you are already registered with Kfintech for E-voting, you can use your existing 
User ID and password to cast your vote.
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11.	 The Scrutinizer shall within a period not exceeding three (3) working days from the 
conclusion of the AGM shall unblock the votes cast by remote E-voting and Ballot, in the 
presence of at least two (2) witnesses not in the employment of the Company and will make 
a Consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the votes cast in favor or against, forthwith to the 
Chairman of the meeting.

12.	 The Results of resolutions shall be declared at or after the Annual General Meeting of the 
Company and the resolutions will be deemed to be passed on the Annual General Meeting 
date subject to receipt of the requisite number of votes in favor of the Resolutions.

13.  	 The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report(s) will be available on website of 
the Company (www.vtmill.com) and on KFintech website (https://evoting.kfintech.com). 
The results shall simultaneously be communicated to Stock Exchanges.

14. 	 All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement shall 
be open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during normal business 
hours (9.00 am to 5.00 pm) on all working days except Sundays, up to and including the 
date of the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Note On TDS:

In accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 as amended by and read with the 
provisions of the Finance Act, 2020, with effect from 1st April 2020, dividends declared and paid 
by the Company are taxable in the hands of its members and the Company is required to deduct 
tax at source (TDS) from the dividend paid to the members at the applicable rates.

For Resident Members:

1.	 No TDS shall be deducted in the case of resident individual members if the amount of such 
dividend in aggregate paid or likely to be paid during the financial yeardoes not exceed  
Rs. 5,000.

2.	 Where the Permanent Account Number (PAN) of resident individual member is available 
and valid,

i.	 TDS shall be deducted at the rate of 10% on the amount of dividend payable.

ii.	 In cases where the resident individual member provides the duly signed Form 15G 
or Form 15H (as applicable) and provided that the eligibility conditions are being 
met, no TDS shall be deducted. 

3.	 Where the PAN is either not available or is invalid, TDS shall be deducted at a rate which 
is higher of the prescribed TDS rates or 20%.
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For Non-Resident Members:

1.	 TDS shall be deducted/withheld at the rate of 20% (plus applicable surcharge and, health 
and education cess) on the amount of dividend payable.

2.	 Non-resident members may have the option to be governed by the provisions of the 
Double Tax Avoidance Treaty (DTAA) between India and the country of tax residence of 
the member if such DTAA provisions are more beneficial to them. To avail of the DTAA 
benefits, the non-resident member should furnish the following documents.

i.	 Self-attested copy of Permanent Account Number (PAN) if allotted to you, by the 
Indian Income Tax Authorities. If PAN is not allotted to you, please provide your 
email address, contact number, and address in the country of residence;

ii.	 Self-attested Tax Residency Certificate (TRC) issued by the competent authority or 
tax authority of the country of your residency, evidencing and certifying your tax 
residency status in the country of residency during the Financial Year 2023-24;

iii.	 Completed and duly signed Form 10F in the format prescribed;

iv.	 Self-declaration in the format: certifying that:

a.	 You are and continue to remain a tax resident of the country of your residency 
during the Financial Year 2023-24;

b.	 You are eligible to claim the beneficial DTAA rate for tax withholding on 
dividends declared by the Company;

c.	 You have no reason to believe that your claim for the benefits of the DTAA is 
impaired in any manner;

d.	 You are the ultimate beneficial owner of your shareholding in the Company 
and dividend receivable from the Company; and

e.	 You do not have a taxable presence or a permanent establishment in India 
during the Financial Year 2023-24.

The Company is not obligated to apply the beneficial DTAA rates at the time of tax deduction/
withholding on dividend amounts. Application of beneficial DTAA Rate shall depend upon the 
completeness and satisfactory review by the Company, of the documents submitted by Non-
Resident member.
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I. Access to Depositories e-voting system in case of individual members holding shares in demat 
mode.

Type of Member Login Method

Individual Members holding securities in demat mode with NSDL

A) 	 Existing Internet-based Demat Account Statement (“IDeAS”) facility Users:

i) 	 Visit the e-services website of NSDL https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a personal 
computer or on a mobile.

ii) 	 On the e-services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” 
which is available under the ‘IDeAS’ section. Thereafter enter the existing user ID 
and password.

iii) 	 After successful authentication, Members will be able to see e-voting services under 
‘Value Added Services’.

	 Please click on “Access to e-voting” under e-voting services, after which the e-voting 
page will be displayed.

iv) 	 Click on the Company name i.e. ‘VTM Limited’ or e-voting service provider (‘ESP’) 
i.e. KFinTech.

v) 	 Members will be re-directed to KFinTech’s website for casting their vote during the 
remote e-voting period and voting during the AGM.

B) 	 Users not registered under IDeAS e-Services:

i) 	 Visit https://eservices.nsdl.com for registering.

ii) 	 Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com

C) 	 By visiting the e-voting website of NSDL:

i) 	 Visit the e-voting website of NSDL https://www.evoting.nsdl.com

ii) 	 Once the home page of e-voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which 
is available under - ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open.

iii) 	 Members will have to enter their User ID (i.e. the sixteen-digit demat account number 
held with NSDL), password/OTP, and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.
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iv) 	 After successful authentication, Members will be redirected to the NSDL Depository 
site wherein they can see the e-voting page.

v) 	 Click on the company name i.e. ‘ VTMLimited’ or ESP name i.e. KFinTech after 
which the Member will be redirected to ESP website to cast their vote during the 
remote e-voting period and vote during the AGM.

II. EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 4:

The Board, at its meeting held on 23rd May, 2024 appointed Mr.A.N.Raman, Practising Cost 
Accountant, having Membership No.9167, as Cost Auditor of the Company, in terms of Section 
148 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and fixed a sum of Rs.50,000/- as remuneration payable 
to him, for the financial year 2024-25.

The remuneration, as recommended by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board, is 
required to be ratified by the shareholders of the Company, as per the requirements of Section 
148(3) of the Companies read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is concerned 
or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out in Item No.4.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the ordinary resolution, as set out in Item No.4, for ratification 
by the shareholders of the Company.

				  
	 By order of the Board

	 K. Thiagarajan 
Kappalur, Madurai.	 Chairman & Managing Director 
May 23,  2024.	 [DIN: 03638370]
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

FOR  THE  YEAR  ENDED  ON  31ST MARCH, 2024

To the Members of VTM Limited    

Your Directors take the pleasure in presenting their 77th Annual Report along with the Audited 
Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2024.

Adoption of Financial Statements under Ind AS:

Pursuant to the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 16th February, 2015 
relating to the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 the Company has adopted 
“Ind AS” with effect from 1st April, 2017. Accordingly, the Financial Statements for the year 
2023-2024 have been prepared in compliance with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015.

Operating & Financial Performance

Profits, Dividends & Retention   

	 Rs. in Lakhs.
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During the year under review the Company was able to register a turnover of Rs.20,796.55 lakhs 
for the FY 2023-2024 as against Rs.20,872.42 for FY 2022-2023. The Company registered an 
export turnover of Rs.9,848 lakhs representing 47.35% of the total turnover whereas the export 
turnover for the previous year was Rs.4,219 lakhs representing 20.21% of the total turnover, in 
spite of the constraints faced in the international markets. The 27.14% increase in export turnover 
is majorly achieved by the export of Home Textiles. 

The Company partnered with USA retailers to market its high-end Home Textile products. Sales 
on US E-commerce platforms have given a booster to the Company, considering the young 
population are active buyers and digitally savvy. The Company has now become a B2C player 
rather than just a B2B player. Due to the continued efforts made by the Management, Home 
Textiles has got very good response from customers. The product has a niche in the overseas 
market. The sales turnover has grown from strength to strength over the last 12 months, reaching 
Rs.5344.88 Lakhs for the Year Ended 31st March 2024. The development of new products and the 
design of Home Textiles achieved this. 

The Company made a Profit of Rs.3,236 lakhs before depreciation for the FY 2023-2024 against 
Rs.2,212 lakhs, during the year FY 2022-2023. The Company achieved a Profit after Tax of 
Rs.1,829 Lakhs for the Year Ended 31st March 2024 as against Rs.914 Lakhs for the year ended 
31st March 2023.

Despite the challenging conditions in both the global and domestic markets, this year’s performance 
has been outstanding and is considered one of the best since the company’s inception. Your 
Directors are optimistic about achieving even better results in the coming years.

Your Directors are aware of the recessionary effects caused by geopolitical tensions and are 
proactively implementing strategies to ensure the Company operates at its best. Though appetite 
in domestic markets is improving after a lull, exports especially of home textiles have been 

Appropriation:-

	 Transfer to General Reserve		  -		  -

	 Interim Dividend @ Re.0.25 per share 	 101 
	 Dividend @ Re.0.70 per share	 281			   - 
	 Dividend @ Re.0.90 per share	 -		  362

			   -----	 382	 -----	 362	

	 Transfer from Other  
		  Comprehensive  Income		  7		  5

	 Retained profit carried forward 		  ------		  ------ 
		  to the following year  		  4095		  2641 
				    ------		  ------
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rewarding. We are focusing on cost management, exploring new market opportunities, and 
enhancing operational efficiencies. With these measures in place, we approach the coming year 
with hope and optimism.

Modernisation & Upgradation

As a continuation of its periodic Modernisation policy during the year under review, your 
Company has spent a little over Rs.902 Lakhs on modernising its plant & equipments. 

NEW LOOMS PURCHASE:

10 PICANOL 340cm OPTIMAX I CONNECT Rapier Dobby looms are imported from Belgium 
at a cost of Rs.723.52 Lakhs. 

FABRIC INSPECTION MACHINES: 

To improve the inspection quality and ergonomics of the operators, 04 Nos Cloth Inspection 
machines are purchased at a cost of Rs.16.65 Lakhs for grey fabric inspection and 01 No. wider 
width inspection machine for finished fabric inspection at a cost of Rs.7.46 Lakhs is installed in 
our Home Textiles unit.

New Boiler with Briquettes (Green fuel) / waste firewood as fuel:

With Continuous evaluation and operation using green fuel, a New Boiler with 2.5 Ton capacity 
and at a cost of Rs.89.15 Lakhs was put to use in the place of the existing Boiler. 

Dividend

Further to the Interim dividend declared by the company at the Board meeting held on 10.11.2023 
of Re.0.25/- per share, considering the profits for the year and as recommended by the Audit 
Committee, the Board of Directors is pleased to recommend a dividend of Re.0.75 per share i.e. 
75% on Equity Shares of Re.1/- each.   If this is approved at the forthcoming Annual General 
Meeting, the dividend will be deposited with the bank within the time prescribed and the dividend 
will be paid to those who are Members of the Company as on Book closure specified in this 
regard. The Book Closure period being 12 July, 2024 to 24th July, 2024 (Both days inclusive) in 
respect of shares held electronically, dividend will be paid on the basis of beneficial ownership as 
per details furnished by the depositories.

Extract of Annual Return

As per the requirements of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 12 of the 
Companies (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014 the annual return has been given as a 
link in Company’s website www.vtmill.com.
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Associate Company/Holding or Subsidiary Company

The Company does not have any Associate Company as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 
and has not entered into any joint venture agreement during the year under review.

Change in the Nature of Business 

There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company.

Orders by Regulators or Courts

There were no significant and material orders passed by regulators or courts or tribunals impacting 
the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

Material Changes Affecting the Financials 

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company 
occurring between March 31, 2024 and the date of this Report of the Directors.

Internal Control System 

The Company has in place an established internal control system designed to ensure proper 
recording of financial and operational information and compliance of various internal controls 
and other regulatory and statutory compliances.  Code on Internal Control which requires that the 
Directors to review the effectiveness of internal controls and compliance controls, financial and 
operational risks, risk assessment and management systems, and related party transactions, have 
been complied with. Self-certification exercises are also conducted by which Senior management 
certifies the effectiveness of the internal control system, their adherence to the Code of Conduct 
and the Company’s policies for which they are responsible, financial or commercial transactions, 
if any, where they have a personal interest or potential conflict of interest. The Internal Audit of 
the Company is carried out by M/s. GSN & Associates., Chartered Accountants Coimbatore, 
periodically.

Company’s Policies

Company’s Policies on Corporate Social Responsibility, Remuneration, Employee Concern 
(Whistle Blowing), the Code of Conduct applicable to Directors and Employees of the Company 
and policies such as Insider Trading Code, Insider Trading Fair Disclosure Code and Policy 
on Materiality of and dealing with Related Party Transactions required under SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and SEBI (Prohibition of Insider 
Trading) Regulations, 2015 have been complied with. 

These Policies, the Code of Conduct, and other policies/codes as referred to above are available 
on the Company’s website www.vtmill.com.
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ISO and  5S Certification

The Company’s factory at Sulakarai, Virudhunagar, Tamil Nadu has been certified ISO for Quality 
Management System Standard and also holds a 5S Certification from AOTS Alumni 5S Forum of 
India and GOTS Certification for the manufacture of organic cotton fabrics.

Segment wise  performance

The Company is primarily a manufacturer of textile products and is managed organizationally as 
a single unit. Accordingly, the Company is a single business segment company. The geographical 
(secondary) segment has been identified as domestic and export sales as detailed below:

	 Particulars	 Amount (Rs.lakhs)	 % of Turnover

	 Export Sales	 9848	 47.35

	 Domestic Sales	 10949	 52.65

Industry Structure & Developments, Opportunities & Threats, Outlook, Risks & 
Concerns

India’s textile and apparel industry, including handicrafts, experienced significant growth with 
exports increasing by 41% compared to previous years. The industry is expected to continue 
expanding, reaching a substantial market size by 2025-26. This sector is crucial to India’s 
economy, contributing notably to GDP, industrial production, and exports. According to IMD 
reports Tamil Nadu is expected to receive slightly above normal rainfall in the ensuing monsoon 
season; this augurs well for the rural economy.

However, the industry faces considerable challenges such as competition from other countries, 
rising labour costs, higher supply chain costs due to infrastructure deficiencies, and environmental 
concerns. Inflation has also reduced domestic purchasing power, further affecting the local market 
as consumers spend less on apparel. To mitigate these challenges, there is a growing focus on 
sustainability and expansion of export markets, which in the textile sector is based on reducing 
environmental impact, inspiring working conditions, supply chain ethics, and sustainable product 
design.

Sustainability extends beyond the use of organic products and efficient procedures. Many 
companies are adopting eco-friendly practices, sustainable fibers, organic dyes, energy-
efficient technologies, and waste reduction initiatives, with several firms obtaining international 
certifications like GOTS and OEKO-TEX® to underline their commitment to sustainability. The 
global textile industry is on the brink of significant transformation, marked by dynamic shifts in 
consumer preferences, sustainability imperatives, and technological innovations.
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Your Company has also invested in sustainable best practices. The investments include roof and 
ground-mount solar panels to the tune of 4 MW. The company has plans of providing in-house 
facilities like hostels and medical centers especially to benefit the women workforce. Women 
workforce constitutes 28% of the total workforce.

Alternative fibers such as linen, hemp, bamboo, tencel, modal, and soy fiber offer a variety of 
choices for consumers seeking sustainable, breathable, and comfortable clothing options. This, 
along with stiff competition from synthetic fabrics, will significantly impact the future of the 
cotton textile industry.

 The ongoing Russia-Ukraine war has created additional financial strain by disrupting key markets 
in the EU and US, leading to higher inflation and supply chain disruptions. Order volumes have 
declined, and yarn prices have shot high since 2023. This has led to a significant drop in India’s 
textile and apparel exports by 3.24% compared to the previous year. Despite these challenges, 
the US home textile market remains strong, with steady growth driven by increased consumer 
spending on home renovations and fashion trends, and India continues to be a key supplier in this 
segment.

Your Company has successfully ventured into the US Home Textiles Market by breaking through 
the E-commerce marketplace to sell its High-end Cotton & Linen Home Fashion. The Company 
has clocked a sales turnover of Rs.52.00 Crore in the Last Financial Year and is poised to steadily 
grow in this market. The Company is also exploring potential opportunities in new product 
development in home fashion and will also expand continuously in the production capacity which 
includes the stitching facility and processing centers.

Board of Directors

The Board is headed by Sri. K. Thiagarajan, Chairman & Managing Director of the Company. 
During the year under review, there were changes at the Board level as under:

The Board consists of 9 Directors with one Chairman and Managing Director, five Non-Executive 
Independent Directors, two Non-Executive Directors and One Woman Non-Executive Director. 

As on 31st March, 2024, the Board is comprised of 9 Directors out of which 1 Director is Executive, 
Chairman & Managing Director, 3 Directors are Non–Executive including one Woman Director, 
5 Directors are Non-Executive Independent. The composition of the Board conforms with the 
requirements of Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations, and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 
All Directors are competent and experienced personalities in their respective fields.

Number of Board Meetings

During the year under review, Six Board Meetings were held on 03.05.2023, 14.06.2023, 
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28.07.2023, 11.09.2023, 10.11.2023 & 07.02.2024. The maximum interval between any two 
consecutive Board Meetings did not exceed 120 days.

The details of number and dates of meetings held by the Board and its Committees, attendance of 
Directors and remuneration paid to them is given separately in the attached Corporate Governance 
Report.

The sitting fees paid to the Non-Executive Directors are within the limits prescribed under the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules thereon.

Retirement of Directors by Rotation

Sri RM. Somasundaram, Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting and being eligible has offered himself for reappointment as a Director of the Company. 
He is proposed to be re-appointed as a Director of the Company. The details of the proposed re-
appointment of Sri RM. Somasundaram are forming part of the Corporate Governance report.

Non-Executive Independent Directors

The Non-Executive Independent Directors have confirmed and declared that they are not 
disqualified to act as a Non-Executive Independent Director in compliance with the provisions 
of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Board is also of the opinion that the Non-
Executive Independent Directors fulfil all the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 
making them eligible to act as Non-Executive Independent Directors. All the Non-Executive 
Independent Directors have convened a meeting on 07.02.2024. 

To comply with the amended regulations as provided in Regulation 17(10) of the SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, the Board reviewed the evaluation process by applying the provisions of Section 
149 and Schedule IV to the Companies Act and the regulations as provided under the SEBI 
Regulations in respect of the Independent Directors of the Company with the following criteria:

l	 the performance of the Independent Directors.
l	 fulfillment of the independence criteria as specified under the Companies Act, 

2013 and regulations under SEBI Regulations. 
l	 the process of evaluation stating the objectives, criteria for evaluation.
l	 periodic review of the evaluation process.

The Independent Directors who attended the meeting of the Board did not participate in the 
discussion in respect of the evaluation of the Independent Director. There was sufficient quorum 
excluding the Independent Directors during the time of evaluation.
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Declaration by Independent Directors

The Independent Directors have submitted their disclosures to the Board that they fulfil all the 
requirements as stipulated in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)
(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 to qualify 
themselves to act as Independent Directors under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with the relevant rules made thereunder. Further, they have also declared that they are not aware 
of any circumstance or situation, that exist or may be reasonably anticipated, that could impair or 
impact their ability to discharge their duties with an objective independent judgment and without 
any external influence. The Independent Directors have also confirmed that they have complied 
with the Company’s Code of Business Conduct & Ethics.

Code of Conduct

All Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management of the Company have confirmed 
compliance with the Code of Conduct applicable to the Directors and employees of the Company. 
The Code of Conduct is available on the Company’s website www.vtmill.com. All Directors have 
confirmed compliance with provisions of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Director’s Responsibility Statement

The Board of Directors acknowledges the responsibility for ensuring compliance with the 
provisions of Section 134(3)(c) read with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, and the 
provisions as referred in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended on 31st March 2024 and state 
that :

i.	 in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have 
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

ii.	 the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently 
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a 
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial 
year and of the profit of the Company for that period;

iii.	 the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv.	 the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

v.	 the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company 
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively 
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and the Company has adopted proper policies and procedures for ensuring orderly 
and efficient conducting of the business:  

a)	 The management designed and implemented policies with respect to adherence 
to accounting standards as a general requirement applied by a Company in 
preparing and presenting financial statements.

b)	 The management evolved a sound system for regular evaluation of the nature 
and extent of the risks to which the Company is exposed and to control risk 
appropriately.

c)	 The Board ensured the effective financial controls, including the maintenance 
of proper accounting records and the Company is not unnecessarily exposed 
to avoidable financial risks. They also contribute to the safeguarding of assets, 
including the prevention and detection of fraud. The financial information 
used within the business and for publication is reliable.

 vi.	 The Directors had devised a proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions 
of all applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

Key Managerial Personnel

The following persons have been appointed as Key Managerial Personnel of the Company in 
compliance with the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013:

a)	 Sri K. Thiagarajan, Chairman and Managing Director.
b)	 Sri K. Deenadayalan, Chief Financial Officer.
c)	 Smt K. Preyatharshine, Company Secretary.

Corporate Governance

The Company has in place the SEBI guidelines pertaining to Corporate Governance. During 
the year under consideration, the Company had Nine-member Board of Directors consisting of 
one Chairman and Managing Director, five Non-Executive Independent Directors, and three  
Non-Executive Directors of which one is a Woman Director. 

The Corporate Governance Report giving the details as required under Regulation 34(3) read 
with Schedule V to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
is given separately as Annexure I and forms part of this Report of the Directors. The Corporate 
Governance Certificate for the year ended on March 31, 2024 issued by M/s. CNGSN & Associates 
LLP, Auditors of the Company, is also attached as part of Annexure I and forms a part of this 
Report of the Directors.
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The Company has formulated the Insider Trading Code and Insider Trading Fair Disclosure Code 
in terms of Regulation 9 read with Schedule B and Regulation 8 read with Schedule A of SEBI 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 respectively, and provided in the company’s 
website at www.vtmill.com. Smt K. Preyatharshine, Company Secretary, is the Compliance 
Officer responsible for compliance with the Insider Trading procedures. As there was no insider 
trading in the securities of the company, the company has not reported any Insider Trading details 
to the Stock Exchange.

Sri K. Thiagarajan, Chairman & Managing Director and Sri. K. Deenadayalan, Chief Financial 
Officer of the Company has given their certificate under Regulation 17(8) read with Part D of 
Schedule II of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
regarding the annual financial statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2024 to the Board 
of Directors which is attached as Annexure IX. The Chairman has given his certificate under 
Regulation 34(3) read with Part D of Schedule V of the above-mentioned Regulations in 
compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024, which 
is attached as Annexure VIII and forms a part of this Report of the Directors.

Audit  Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three Independent Directors and satisfies the provisions 
of Section 177(2) of the Companies Act, 2013. The Audit Committee comprised of Sri. M. 
Anbukani as Chairman, Sri. Ganesh Ananthakrishnan, and Sri. L. Sevugan as Members, and all 
are Independent Directors.

The Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Committee. The details of all related party 
transactions are placed periodically before the Audit Committee. During the year there were 
no instances where the Board had not accepted the recommendations of the Audit Committee. 
The Company has in place a vigil mechanism, details of which are available on the Company’s 
website www.vtmill.com

The Audit Committee has also been delegated the responsibility for monitoring and reviewing 
risk management assessment and minimization procedures, implementing and monitoring the 
risk management plan, identifying, reviewing, and mitigating all elements of risks to which the 
Company may be exposed.

The Audit Committee is empowered with monitoring the appointment of Key Managerial 
Personnel. 

The details of terms of reference of the Audit Committee, number and dates of meetings held, 
attendance of the Directors and remuneration paid to them are given separately in the attached 
Corporate Governance Report.
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Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of Listing 
Regulations, the Company has formulated a Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy to enable 
Directors and employees of the Company to report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or 
suspected fraud or violation of Code of Conduct, that could adversely impact the Company’s 
operations, business performance and/or reputation, securely and confidentially. The said policy 
provides adequate safeguards against the victimization of Directors/employees and direct access 
to the Chairman of the Audit Committee, in exceptional cases. The Vigil Mechanism / Whistle 
Blower Policy is available on the website of the Company under the web link https://www.
vtmill.com/investor/Vigil-Mechanism-Whistle-Blower-Policy.pdf Your Company affirms that no 
personnel of the Company has been denied access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee and 
no complaint has been received during the year under review.

Evaluation of the Board’s performance, Committees of the Board, and Individual 
Directors

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulations, the Board has carried out the 
annual evaluation of its performance, the individual Directors (including the Chairman) as well 
as an evaluation of the working of all Board Committees.

 The Board reviewed and evaluated its performance from the following angles:

l	 Company Performance
l	 Strategy and Implementation
l	 Risk Management
l	 Corporate ethics
l	 Performance of the Individual Directors
l	 Performance of the Committees viz., Audit Committee, Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee and Independent 
Directors Committee.

The Board also evaluated the performance of the above-referred Committees and concluded that 
the Committees continued to operate effectively, with full participation from all members and 
executive management of the Company.

Board upon evaluation considered that the Board is well balanced in terms of diversity of 
experience. The Board noted that all Directors have understood the opportunities and risks to 
the Company’s strategy and are supportive of the direction articulated by the management team 
towards improvement. Corporate responsibility, ethics, and compliance are taken seriously, and 
there is a good balance between the company’s core values and shareholders’ interests.
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The Directors also expressed their satisfaction in all the above areas considering the Company’s 
performance in all fronts viz., New Product Development, Sales and Marketing, International 
business, Employee relations, and compliance with statutory requirements.  

The evaluation results have been communicated to the Chairman of the Board of Directors.

Related Party Transactions

During the year 2023-24, the company has entered into contracts or arrangements for five years 
from 01.04.2024 to 31.03.2029 with such number of related parties with the approval by the 
Board of Directors and the members of the company at the Annual General Meeting wherever 
necessary in respect of the following:

1. Sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials
2. Selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying, property of any kind
3. Leasing of property of any kind
4. Availing or rendering of any services
5. Obligations 

In the current period, due to the exigencies that, when the limits exceed, the company can carry out 
the transactions only with the prior approval of the members at the General Meeting, and hence 
the company has to carry out the transactions with the related party regularly which may exceed 
the limits specified in the Rules, it would be appropriate to obtain consent from the members of 
the company to carry out the transactions with related parties. Therefore for the approval of the 
related party transactions, the members approval is sought, in the Annual General Meeting of the 
company held on 03.07.2023 for five years from 01.04.2024.   

The details in respect of the material contracts or arrangements or transactions on arm’s length 
basis carried on with the related parties have been furnished in Annexure V. 

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The Company established CSR Committee on 24th April 2014. The CSR Committee was charged 
with the responsibility to discharge functions related to CSR activities to be carried out as per 
Schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013 and the amendments made thereon. As per the notification 
issued by MCA, there is no necessity to form CSR Committee if the prescribed CSR expenditure 
does not exceed Rs.50 Lakhs in the year, the Board of Directors can discharge the CSR committee 
functions and activities. Therefore, CSR Committee was disbanded and future review of CSR 
obligations, including progress monitoring, coordination with implementing agency, etc., came 
under the purview of the Board of Directors on and from 01.04.2021.

The CSR Policy, which was approved by the Board, is available on the Company’s website.
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The Company has decided to spend CSR funds for ongoing projects, if any that can be completed 
within two years and other than on-going projects also. As per the latest CSR Amendment 
Rules, the ongoing project has to be undertaken only by the Registered Trust or Society or a 
Section 8 company having Certificate Under Section 12A and 80G of Income Tax Act 1961. The 
KKTCMCT, a registered Trust had been registered with MCA having Regn No : CSR00003093.

The Company has fully spent Rs.22.95 Lakhs, being the average profits for past three years, 
for the other than ongoing projects through the implementing agency, Kalaithanthai Karumuttu 
Thiagaraja Chettiar Memorial Charitable Trust (KKTCMCT) and directly. 

The CSR policy is available on the Company’s website www.vtmill.com

Prevention of Sexual Harassment

In compliance with the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013, the Company has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee with ten 
employees and a NGO representative. The Board also has approved the prevention of Sexual 
Harassment Policy and all employees especially women employees were made aware of the 
Policy and the manner in which complaints could be lodged. The Committee has submitted its 
Annual Report and the same has been approved by the Board.

The following is reported pursuant to Section 22 of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:

	 1.	 No. of complaints of sexual harassment received 	 NIL

	 2.	 No. of complaints disposed off during the year	 NIL

	 3. 	 No. of cases pending for more than ninety days	 NIL

	 4.	 No. of awareness programme conducted	 1

	 5. 	 Nature of action taken by the employer 	 Not Applicable

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

A Nomination and Remuneration Committee was constituted on April 24, 2014 and, as on 
31st March, 2024,  after the reconstitution of the Committee in this year, now Sri Ganesh 
Ananthakrishnan is the Chairman, an Independent  Director, Sri K. Thiagarajan, Sri L. Sevugan 
and Sri M. Anbukani, are Members of the Committee. The constitution satisfies the provisions 
of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 as well as the SEBI Regulations. The Company 
Secretary is the Secretary of this Committee.
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During the financial year ended March 31, 2024, the meeting was convened on 11.09.2023.

The Company’s Remuneration Policy is available on the Company’s website www.vtmill.com 
and annexed as forming part of this report as  Annexure X.

The details of terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are given 
separately in the attached  Corporate Governance Report.

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee now consists of Sri T. N. Ramanathan as Chairman, 
Sri K. Thiagarajan, and Sri V. Kasinathan as Members. The Company Secretary is the Secretary 
of the Committee as per Regulation 20 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, to have three 
Directors as Members of the Committee with one Independent Director Member. The Committee 
met once during the year on 07.02.2024.

The Committee has delegated the responsibility for share transfers and other routine share 
maintenance work to the Company Secretary and to M/s. KFin Technologies Limited, the 
Registrars and Share Transfer Agents of the Company. All requests for dematerialization and 
rematerialization of shares, transfer or transmission of shares, and other share maintenance 
matters are completed within 30 days of receipt of valid and complete documents. The Committee 
also reports to the Board on issues relating to the shareholding pattern, shareholding of major 
shareholders, insider trading compliances, movement of share prices, redressal of complaints, 
Reports on SCORES of SEBI and all compliances under the Companies Act, 2013, and the listing 
agreement with Stock Exchanges. 

The shares of the Company are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange. The Company’s shares 
are compulsorily traded in the dematerialized form. The ISIN number allotted is INE222F01029. 
The details of shareholding patterns, distribution of shareholding, and share prices are mentioned 
separately in the attached Corporate Governance Report. 

Transfer to Investor Education & Protection Fund

Transfer of shares:

The company’s Stakeholder Relationship Committee has already transmitted 864000 equity 
shares of the company into DEMAT account of the IEPF Authority held with NSDL (DP ID Clent 
ID IN300708-10656671) in terms of Provisions of Section 124(6) of the companies Act 2013, and 
the related Rules.  During the year the Company has transmitted 65900 shares to the IEPF. The 
complete list of such shareholders, whose shares were due for transfer to IEPF in current year is 
also placed in the website of company.
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Statutory Auditors

Auditors

In terms of Section 139 of the Companies Act and the rules made thereon, M/s CNGSN & 
Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, Chennai (Firm Regn. No. 004915S/S200036) have been 
appointed as Auditors of the Company by the members at their meeting held on  23rd June 2017  
and the Auditors have been appointed for five years from the conclusion of 70th Annual General 
Meeting till the conclusion of the 75th Annual General Meeting.

Accordingly, the tenure of their appointment was extended at the 75th AGM. Being eligible, the 
said firm was re-appointed for a further term of five years, till the conclusion of the 80th AGM.

The Auditors have already submitted certification u/s. 141 of the Companies Act and Peer Review 
Certificate in respect of their appointment as Auditors of the Company. 

AUDITORS

Auditors’ Report

The Notes to the financial statements referred in the Auditors Report are self-explanatory. There 
are no qualifications or reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers given by Statutory Auditors’ 
of the Company and therefore do not call for any comments under Section 134 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. The Auditors’ Report is enclosed with the financial statements in this Annual Report.

Secretarial Audit Reports and Certificates

A Secretarial Audit was conducted during the year by the Secretarial Auditor,     Sri S. Ramalingam, 
Practising Company Secretary, in accordance with the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. The Secretarial Auditor’s Report along with the Annual Secretarial Compliance Report 
(as required under the amended SEBI Regulations) has been obtained and is attached as Annexure 
II and forms a part of this Report of the Directors. There are no qualifications or observations or 
remarks made by the Secretarial Auditor in his Report.  

Cost Auditor and Cost Records 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies 
(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Company was required to maintain cost records. 
Accordingly, the Company has duly made and maintained the Cost Records as mandated by the 
Central Government.

The Board of Directors had approved the appointment of Sri A. N. Raman, Cost Accountant as 
the Cost Auditor of the Company to audit the Company’s Cost Records for the year 2024-25, at a 
remuneration of Rs.50,000/- plus applicable taxes and out-of-pocket expenses.
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The remuneration of the cost auditor is required to be ratified by the members in accordance 
with the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 14 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. Accordingly, the matter is being placed before the Members for 
ratification at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Fixed Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and as such, there are no outstanding 
deposits in terms of the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

The company does not have any deposit which is not in compliance with the Companies Act, 
2013.

Loans, guarantees and investments

The Company has not granted any inter-corporate loan, given guarantee or provided security for 
availing loan by any other company. However, the company has invested its funds in such number 
of companies and in such number of shares and securities in other bodies corporate as referred to 
in Notes No. 06 and 11 of the Balance Sheet. 

In compliance with Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, loans to employees bear interest at 
applicable rates. 

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings 
and Outgo 

The prescribed particulars of Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign 
Exchange Earnings and Outgo required under Section 134(3)(m) read with Rule 8(3) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 attached as Annexure IV and forms a part of this Report of 
the Directors.

Particulars of Employees 

The prescribed particulars of Employees required under Section 134(3)(q) read with Rule 5 of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is attached 
as Annexure VI and forms a part of this Report of the Directors. There are no employees drawing 
remuneration more than Rs.102 Lakhs per annum or Rs.8,50,000/- per month.

Statement On Compliance with Secretarial Standards

The Directors have devised systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
Secretarial Standards and that such systems are adequate, and operating effectively. The Company 
is in compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India and approved by the Central Government under Section 118(10) of the Act.
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Annexures forming a part of this Report of the Directors

The Annexures referred to in this Report and other information which are required to be disclosed 
are annexed herewith and form a part of this Report of the Directors :

I.	 Corporate Governance Report along with Certificate on Corporate    Governance by 
the Auditor of the Company.

II.	 Secretarial Audit Report 

III.	 Extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9 – Web link.

IV.	 Particulars on Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, and Foreign 
Exchange Earnings and Outgo.

V.	 Form AOC-2 for material contracts with Related Parties.

VI.	 Ratio of remuneration and Particulars of Employees.

VII.	 Annual Report on CSR spending.

VIII.	 Chairman & Managing Director’s Certificate under Regulation 34(3) read with 
Part D of Schedule V to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 on compliance of the Code of Conduct. 

IX.	 Certificate by Chairman and Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer under 
Regulation 17(8), of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 on Financial Statements. 

X.	 Remuneration Policy.

Appreciation

Your Directors record their sincere appreciation of the dedication and commitment of all 
employees in achieving and sustaining excellence in all areas of the business. Your Directors 
thank the Shareholders, customers, suppliers, and Bankers, and all other stakeholders for their 
continuous support to the Company.

	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

Kappalur, Madurai.	 K. Thiagarajan 
May 23, 2024	 Chairman & Managing Director 
	 [DIN:03638370] 



31

LIMITEDVTM

Management  Discussion & Analysis:

Financial Performance:

The company’s Sales Turnover has decreased by Rs.75 Lakhs from Rs.20,872 Lakhs to Rs.20,797 
Lakhs registering a decrease of 0.36%. The depreciation has decreased to Rs.890 Lakhs. The 
Profit after depreciation has increased by Rs. 1,114 Lakhs  from Rs.1,232 Lakhs to Rs. 2346 
Lakhs. The Profit after tax has increased from Rs.914 Lakhs to Rs.1829 Lakhs as set out in the 
Directors’ Report. 

Industry Structure and Developments: 

Industry structure and developments have been elaborately stated in the Director’s Report.

Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy: 

Internal Control Systems has been elaborately stated in the Director’s Report.

Human Resources:

The Company has a recruitment and training policy to meet its HR needs.  The Company’s 
performance on the Industrial Relations front continues to be quite satisfactory.   

Cautionary Statement: 

Certain statements in the “Management Discussion and Analysis Report” may be forward-looking 
and are as required by applicable laws and regulations.  Many factors may affect the actual results, 
which could be different from what the Directors envisage in terms of the future performance and 
outlook – the ever-present risk factors.
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Annexure I: Corporate Governance Report 2023-24

THE COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE

The corporate governance framework of the company is led by the following practices:

Corporate Governance is about meeting our goals responsibly and transparently while being 
accountable to our stakeholders. Our company’s governance considers the long-term interest of 
every stakeholder as we operate with a commitment to integrity, fairness, equity, transparency, 
accountability, and commitment to values. The framework lays down procedures and mechanisms 
for enhancing leadership for smooth administration and productive collaboration among 
employees, the value chain, the community, investors, and the Government.

The Company, in addition to compliance with regulatory requirements, also endeavours to ensure 
high standards of ethical conduct in the Organization. 

1.	 A Report on Corporate Governance is given below and Auditor’s certificate in compliance 
with the provisions of Corporate Governance is enclosed separately.

2.	 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

2.1.	 Composition and Category of Directors:

The Board of Directors as of 23rd May, 2024 consists of Nine Directors: One Executive Director, 
Three Non-Executive Directors, and Five Independent Directors, and thus it complies with SEBI 
Regulations. The details of the composition of the Board of Directors are as follows:

During the financial year, Sri T. Kannan, Former Chairman and Managing Director of the company 
passed away on 23.05.2023. Sri K. Thiagarajan was designated as Chairman and Managing 
Director of the company with effect from 11.09.2023. Sri.K. Vethachalam, Non-Executive 
Director resigned from the Board and Sri. V. Kasinathan was inducted as an Additional Director 
on 11.09.2023. The Shareholder’s Approval regarding the appointment of Mr. K. Thiagarajan as 
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Chairman and Managing Director and regularization of the appointment of Mr. V. Kasinathan was 
obtained in the Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on 27th November 2023.

2.2.	 Details of the Directors

The current composition of the Board of Directors complies with the provisions of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013.  

In the present Board, Sri. K. Thiagarajan, Chairman & Managing Director, Dr.(Smt.) Uma Kannan 
are related to each other.

None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 Committees as per the 
requirements of Regulation 26 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. Necessary disclosures have been made by the Directors in this regard.

The Board meets at least once a quarter to review the performance of the Company and also meets 
as and when to transact any special business that may arise.

Sri. RM. Somasundaram, Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting and being eligible has offered himself for reappointment as a Director of 
the Company. He is proposed to be re-appointed as a Director of the Company. The personal 
information about Sri. RM. Somasundaram, given as below: 

Sri. RM. Somasundaram is a Non-Executive Non-Independent Director of the Company. He 
joined the Board of Directors of the Company in February 1984. 

Sri. RM. Somasundaram is a Commerce Graduate who has very long and valuable experience in 
the textile industry and he is also on the boards of textile mills as follows:

1.	 Sree Kannathal Mills Private Ltd.

2.	 SK.AR.SM. Textiles P. Ltd.

He holds 60,000 Shares by himself in the Company.

Except Sri. RM. Somasundaram, being an appointee, none of the Directors of the Company and 
their relatives is concerned or interested in the resolution set out at Item No.3 of AGM notice. 

All Directors have certified that the disqualifications mentioned under Sections 164, 167, and 
169 of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply to them.  Independent Directors have confirmed 
that they have complied with the Code for Independent Directors mentioned in Schedule IV of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and that they are not disqualified to act as an Independent Directors in 
compliance with the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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Independent Directors’ Criteria

The Board of Directors confirms that the Independent Directors fulfill the criteria in respect 
of their independency as referred under the provisions of Section 149 and Schedule IV to the 
Companies Act, 2013 and under the regulations referred to in the SEBI (LODR) Regulations as 
amended from time to time.   

Familiarization Programme: At the time of induction, the Company familiarizes the Independent 
Directors concerning their role & responsibilities, industry outlook, business strategy, Company’s 
operations, etc. Thereafter, the Independent Directors are provided with necessary documents, 
reports, internal policies, and updates to familiarise them with the Company’s business, policies, 
procedures, and practices at various Meetings held during the year.

2.3.	 Code of Conduct

The Code of Conduct laid down by the company, which has been adopted by the Board of 
Directors, applies to the Directors and all employees of the Company.  This Code of Conduct 
emphasizes the Company’s commitment to compliance with the highest standards of legal and 
ethical behaviour. The Code of Conduct is available on the website of the Company www.
vtmill.com under the heading ‘Investor Information’. All Directors and senior management have 
adhered to the Code of Conduct of the Company during the year and have signed declarations of 
compliance to the Code of Conduct. The declaration signed by Chairman and Managing Director, 
is given separately in the Annual Report.

2.4.	 List of skills/expertise or competence of the Board of Directors

The Board comprises Members who have varied skills, experience, and knowledge to effectively 
govern and direct the organization. The skills and attributes of the Board can be broadly categorized 
as follows: 

l	 Governance skills (skills directly relevant to performing the Board’s varied functions, 
including key functions). 

l	 Industry skills (Skills relevant to the Textile industry).
l	 Financial skills (Skills relevant to Finance, Treasury, and Banking Management).
l	 Accounting skills (Skills relevant to Accounting Functions).
l	 Administrative skills (Skills relevant to administrative functions). 

Details of listed entities where the Directors of the Company are Directors and category of 
Directorship:

	 Directors	 Listed Entities	 Category of Directorship

	 Sri Ganesh Ananthakrishnan	 DSM Geodata Limited	 Director
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2.5.	 Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

As  of March  31, 2024 the following shares of the Company were held by Directors:

	 Name	 Designation	 No. of shares

	 Sri K. Thiagarajan	 CMD	 739200

	 Sri RM. Somasundaram	 Director	 60000

	 Sri V.Kasinathan	 Director	 3000

No other Director or Key Managerial Personnel holds any shares in the Company.

2.6.	 Board Meetings, Annual General Meeting and Attendance

During the year under review,  Board Meetings were held and sitting fees have been paid to the 
Directors as detailed herein:-

No sitting fees were paid to Sri T. Kannan, Former Chairman and Managing Director,  
Sri K. Thiagarajan, Chairman and Managing Director with effect from 11.09.2023, and  
Mr. T.N. Ramanathan, Independent Director.

Smt K. Preyatharshine, Company Secretary of the Company has attended all meetings of the 
Board of Directors.

2.7.	 Board Committees

In line with the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of the  SEBI Listing Regulations (LODR) 
2015, the Company has constituted an Audit Committee, a Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, and a Stakeholders Relationship Committee.
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These Committees’ composition, terms of reference, attendance, and other details are mentioned 
later in this Report.

2.8.	 Directorships  and  Committee  membership in  other companies  

None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 Committees and Chairman 
of more than 5 Committees [as specified in Regulation 26 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015] across all listed companies in India of which he/
she is a Director.

Independent Directors do not serve in more than 7 listed companies. None of the Independent 
Directors are whole-time Directors in any listed Company.

Directorships and Membership of Committees in other companies held by Directors as on March 
31, 2024 and the Attendance of the Directors at the Board meetings and the Annual General 
Meeting is given below:
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ID: Independent Director   VTM – VTM LIMITED  

NED-Non Executive Director. NEID-Non Executive Independent Director.

Note: 

1.	 Thiru K. Thiagarajan, CMD, Smt Uma Kannan, Director and Thiru.TN.Ramanathan, 
Director have attended the Annual General Meeting held on 03.07.2023. 

2.	 * Thiru T.Kannan ceased to be a Board member, due to death on 23rd May, 2023.

3.	 ** Thiru V.Kasinathan was appointed to the Board in the meeting held on 11.09.2023

4.	 *** Thiru K.Vethachalam resigned from the Board with effect from 11.09.2023

3.	 AUDIT COMMITTEE

3.1.	 Constitution and Composition: The Audit Committee was constituted during the financial 
year 2001-2002, and reconstituted in view of the changes in Independent Directors in 2022-
23. Accordingly, the Audit Committee composition has been as under:

	 From 1-4-2022 till 18-09-2022 consists of the following Directors 

			  Director	 Category

			  Thiru A. Mariappan 	 Chairman

			  Thiru Ganesh Ananthakrishnan	 Member

			  Thiru L.Sevugan	 Member

	 From 19-09-2022 till 28-10-2022 consists of the following Directors 

			  Director	 Category

			  Thiru Ganesh Ananthakrishnan	 Chairman

			  Thiru L.Sevugan	 Member

			  Thiru C.R.Venkatesh	 Member

	 From 28-10-2022* consists of the following Directors 

			  Director	 Category

			  Thiru M.Anbukani 	 Chairman

			  Thiru Ganesh Ananthakrishnan	 Member

			  Thiru L.Sevugan	 Member

	 *from end of the meeting
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	 There is no change in the composition of the Audit committee. The Chairman and 
Managing Director is the permanent invitee to all meetings. The Company Secretary is 
the Secretary to the Audit Committee. All Directors are financially literate, and Sri M. 
Anbukani, Independent Director, has expertise in industry-related financial management. 
Besides, Sri Ganesh Ananthakrishnan also has sound finance experience and industrial 
knowledge (including software). Sri L. Sevugan has industry experience. The Statutory 
Auditors are invited to the meetings to discuss with the Directors the scope of the audit, 
their comments, and recommendations on the accounts, records, risks, internal procedures, 
and internal controls of the Company.

3.2.	 Terms of Reference: The terms of reference of the Audit Committee cover all the areas 
mentioned under Part C of the Schedule II to the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The 
Board has also included in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the monitoring, 
implementing and review of risk management plan as required under Regulation 18 and 
as per Part C (Role of Audit committee) of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
& Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The broad terms of reference of the Audit 
Committee therefore include the whole review of financial reporting process and all financial 
results, statements and disclosures and recommending the same to the Board, reviewing 
the internal audit reports and discussing the same with the Internal Auditors, reviewing 
internal control systems and procedures, to meet the statutory auditors and discuss their 
findings, their scope of audit, Post audit discussion, adequacy of internal audit functions, 
audit qualifications, if any, appointment / removal and remuneration of auditors, changes 
in accounting policies and practices including Ind AS, reviewing approval and disclosure 
of all related party transactions, reviewing with the management, the performance of the 
statutory and internal auditors and their remuneration, compliance with listing agreements 
/ SEBI(LODR) Regulations, and other legal requirements and the Company’s financial and 
risk management plan and policies and its implementation, disaster recovery policies and 
compliance with statutory requirements.

3.3.	 Internal Audit: The Internal Audit of the Company is carried out by M/s. GSN & Associates, 
Chartered Accountants, Coimbatore, periodically and they interact with Statutory auditors 
for the Company’s audit matters.

3.4.	 Attendance: During the financial year ended March 31, 2024, Five meetings of the Audit 
Committee were held :
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4.	 Remuneration to Directors

Total Remuneration paid to Non-Executive Directors for attending meetings of the Board and 
Committees during the year ended March 31, 2024 is given below :

Mr. K. Vethachalam is not forming part of Board from 11.09.2023, due to his resignation.

5a.    NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Constitution and Composition: The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was constituted 
on April 25, 2014 in compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Sri. Ganesh Ananthakrishnan, an Independent Director, is the Chairman of the Committee. The 
other members were Sri.T.Kannan and Sri.M.Anbukani.

The committee was reconstituted after the demise of Sri T Kannan.
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From 14-06-2023 Consists of the following Directors 

	 Director	 Category

	 Thiru M.Anbukani 	 Chairman

	 Thiru Ganesh Ananthakrishnan	 Member

	 Thiru L.Sevugan	 Member

	 Thiru K. Thiagarajan	 Member

Terms of Reference: The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee cover 
all the areas mentioned under Schedule II Part D of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The broad terms 
of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee therefore include recommending 
a policy relating to remuneration and employment, terms of Whole Time Directors and senior 
management personnel, adherence to the remuneration/employment policy as finally approved 
by the Board of Directors, preparing the criteria and identify persons who may be appointed as 
Directors or Senior Management of the Company, preliminary evaluation of every Director’s 
performance, Board diversity, compliance of the Code for Independent Directors referred to in 
Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, compliance with the Company’s Code of Conduct by 
Directors and employees of the Company, reporting non-compliances to the Board of Directors, 
recommending draft of the report required under Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 which will form part of the Directors Report 
to Shareholders, monitor loans to employees and any other matters which the Board of Directors 
may direct from time to time.

During the financial year ended March 31, 2024, there were one meeting as below:

	 Director Name	 11.09.2023 (Rs.)	 Total (Rs.)

	 Ganesh Ananthakrishnan	 5000	 5000

	 M.Anbukani	 -	 -

	 L.Sevugan	 5000	 5000

	 K.Thiagarajan	 -	

	 TOTAL	 10000	 10000

Remuneration Policy: During the year, the Committee reviewed the Nomination and Remuneration 
Policy and as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the policy has 
been approved by the Board of Directors. 
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The terms of reference of the Committee inter alia, include the following:

Succession planning of the Board of Directors, and Senior Management Employees.

Identifying and selecting of candidates for appointment as Directors / Independent Directors based 
on certain laid down criteria; identifying potential individuals for Senior Management positions.

Formulate and review from time to time, the policy for the selection and  appointment of Directors, 
Key Managerial Personnel, and senior management employees and their remuneration.

Review the performance of the Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel based on 
certain criteria as approved by the Board. In reviewing the overall remuneration of the Board of 
Directors and Senior Management, the Committee ensures that the remuneration is reasonable to 
attract, retain good managerial talent. 

Remuneration to Directors:

Sri K.Thiagarajan, the Chairman and Managing Director of the company is entitled to a 
remuneration not exceeding 5% of the Net Profits as computed u/s. 198 of the Companies Act, 
2013, and accordingly a sum of Rs.50.00 lakhs has been provided as remuneration for the year 
2023-24.

The Non-Executive Directors are entitled to sitting fees for every meeting of the Board or 
Committee thereof attended by them. They are also entitled to a commission not exceeding 1% 
of the Net Profits of the Company. 

5b.	 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:

The Company established the CSR Committee on 24th April, 2014. The CSR Committee was 
charged with the responsibility to discharge functions related to CSR activities to be carried out 
as per Schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013 and the amendments made thereon. As per the 
notification issued by MCA, there is no necessity to form a CSR Committee if the prescribed CSR 
expenditure does not exceed Rs.50 Lakhs in the year, the Board of Directors can discharge the 
CSR Committee functions and activities. Therefore CSR Committee was disbanded and future 
review of CSR obligations, including progress monitoring, coordination with implementing 
agency, etc, came under the purview of the Board of Directors on and from 01.04.2021.

The CSR Policy, which was approved by the Board, is available on the Company’s website.

Separate Meeting of Independent Directors:

The Independent Directors of the company are T.N.Ramanathan, Ganesh Ananthkrishnan,  
M. Anbukani, L. Sevugan and C.R. Venkatesh. They met on 07th February, 2024 
without the attendance of Non-Independent Directors and members of management, and  
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C.R. Venkatesh was granted leave of absence. They deliberated and reviewed the performance 
of the Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole.  Besides they assessed the quality, 
quantity, and timeliness of the flow of information between the Company’s management and the 
Board members that is essential for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

SHARES:

6. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP  COMMITTEE

The Committee considered and reviewed the Terms of Reference of the Committee taking into 
account the additional role of SRC as amended under Schedule II Part D(B) of the SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015.

Constitution and Composition: The Stakeholders Relationship Committee has been reconstituted 
in terms of Regulation 20 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations duly amended consisting of Sri T.N. 
Ramanathan an Independent Director as Chairman and Sri T. Kannan and Sri K. Vethachalam as 
Members of the Committee. The committee was reconstituted after the demise of Sri T Kannan.

The committee consists of the following Directors 

	 Director	 Category

	 Thiru T N Ramanathan	 Chairman

	 Thiru K Thiagarajan	 Member

	 Thiru V Kasinathan	 Member

The Committee met once during the year at 07.02.2024. The Stakeholders’ Relationship 
Committee has approved during the year, the transfers, transmissions, and demat requests. Smt K 
Preyatharshine, Secretary of the Company, is also the Secretary and Compliance Officer for the 
Committee.

During the year seventeen grievances regarding non-receipt of shares applied for transfer/
transmission, non-receipt of dividend, Balance Sheet and related matters, KYC Update, Name 
Change Request, IEPF Claim were received from the shareholders. Except two, all the other 
queries were redressed and resolved. No shares were pending for transfer at the close of the year. 

Reconciliation of Share capital audit:

Mr. S. Ramalingam, PCS (CP Number:23495) carries out the Reconciliation of the Share capital 
audit as mandated by SEBI, and reports on the Reconciliation of total issued and Listed capital, 
and that of total capital admitted/held in Demat form with CDSL, and NSDL, and those held in 
physical form. This audit is carried out every quarter, and the report thereon is submitted to stock 
exchanges, and also placed before the Board.
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Information on Unclaimed Dividend: 

The company till the financial year ended 2024, has transmitted 864000 equity shares of the 
company into the DEMAT account of the IEPF Authority held with NSDL (DP ID Client ID 
IN300708-10656671) in terms of Provisions of Section 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the related IEPF Rules. These equity shares were the shares of holders whose unclaimed 
dividends pertaining to the earlier years, had been transferred to IEPF and who had not encashed 
their dividends for seven subsequent financial years. The company during the year ended 2024, 
has transmitted 65900 equity shares of the company into DEMAT account of the IEPF Authority 
held with NSDL (DP ID Client id IN300708-10656671) in  terms of Provisions of Section 124(6) 
of the Companies Act 2013, and the IEPF rules, relating to year 2014-15, totalling 864000 shares 
in the above said NSDL demat account (DP ID Client id IN300708-10656671).

The Company intimated through individual reminders to concerned shareholders advising them 
to encash their dividend, for the unclaimed period, before the transfer of the shares to the Fund.

The Company will be intimating through individual reminders to concerned shareholders advising 
them to encash their dividend and the complete list of such shareholders, whose shares will be due 
for transfer to IEPF during 2024-25 and it has been placed on the website of the company.

Under provisions of the Companies Act 2013, Company is committed to making timely payments 
of dividends. 

The Unclaimed dividends relating to the past 7 years are as below:

	 Particulars	 Year	 Amount  
		  Relating to	 Rs.

	 Unclaimed dividend           	 2016-17	 1257943.50

	 Unclaimed dividend           	 2017-18	 1243863.00

	 Unclaimed dividend           	 2018-19	 1475693.10

	 Unclaimed dividend-Int      	 2019-20                      	 1072333.80

	 Unclaimed dividend           	 2020-21	 812809.00

	 Unclaimed dividend           	 2021-22	 921555.30

	 Unclaimed dividend           	 2022-23	 765787.60

	 Unclaimed dividend Int      	 2023-24	 246890.00
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Distribution of Shareholding as on 31.03.2024:

	 No. of 	 No. of	 % of	 No. of	 %  of 
	 Shares held	 Shareholders	 Shareholders	 Shares	 Shareholding

	 Up to      5000	 4249	 95.01	 2014126	 5.01

	 5001 –  10000	 88	 1.97	 613443	 1.52

	 10001 - 20000	 61	 1.36	 880302	 2.19

	 20001 - 30000	 22	 0.49	 579376	 1.44

	 30001 - 40000	 15	 0.34	 519343	 1.29

	 40001 - 50000	 3	 0.07	 132914	 0.33

	 50001 – 100000	 17	 0.38	 1293382	 3.22

	 100001 – above	 17	 0.38	 34194714	 85.00

	 Total	 4472	 100.00	 40227600	 100.00

Shareholding pattern as on 31st March, 2024:

	 Shareholders	 No. of Shares held	 % of total shares held

	 Promoters	 30169700	 75.00

	 Corporate Bodies	 1319953	 3.28

	 Public	 8649658	 21.50

	 NRI’s	 88289	 0.22

                  	Total	 40227600	 100.00

The Company has not issued any ESOP or ESOS to its Employees / Directors.

 Dematerialization of shares:

The shares of the Company have been dematerialized and the unique ISIN number allotted for 
the Company as under:

	 ISIN:   INE222F01029
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Currently, 96.61% of the total shares have been dematerialized. 

The Shares held by Promoters have all been dematerialized.

Listing at Stock Exchanges:

	 Sl.No.	 Name of the Exchange	 Code	 Address

	 1.	 Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd	 532893	 Regd. Office: Floor 25, PJ Towers,  
				    Dalal Street, MUMBAI - 400 001.

TRADING SYMBOL AT BSE	 :	 VTM

Demat ISIN No.	 :	 INE222F01029

Exchange	 :	 BSE

Share Price movements - Market price data :     

	 Month	 HIGH	 LOW 
		  Rs.	 Rs.

	 APRIL 2023	 51.55	 45.60

	 MAY 2023	 54.78	 47.25

	 JUNE 2023 	 55.20	 50.00

	 JULY 2023	 61.70	 50.25

	 AUGUST 2023 	 61.50	 54.00

	 SEPTEMBER 2023	 65.60	 55.30

	 OCTOBER 2023 	 62.90	 54.12

	 NOVEMBER 2023  	 63.40	 58.31

	 DECEMBER 2023 	 66.70	 55.71

	 JANUARY 2024 	 69.99	 61.35

	 FEBRUARY 2024 	 79.00	 64.00

	 MARCH 2024 	 77.00	 65.00

The share quotations are stated for the Re 1/- Face value of the company’s equity share.
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Stock Options:      NIL.

Plant Location:     Sulakarai, Virudhunagar,  Pin: 626 003.

6.1	 Compliance Officer : Smt K Preyatharshine, Company Secretary, is the Secretary and the 
Compliance Officer and her contact details are given below :

	 Smt K Preyatharshine, 
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, 
	VTM  Limited 
	Sulakarai,  
	Virudhunagar-626003

	 Phone : 0452 -2482595-Ext 508 
Email : complianceofficer@vtmill.com

6.2	 Details of Request / Grievances from Shareholders:

	 No. of complaints remaining unresolved 
	as on 31.03.2023	 :	 1 

	 No. of Requests received during the year	 :	 17

	 No. of Requests resolved during the year	 :	 17

	 No. of unresolved as of 31.03.2024	 :	 1

7.	 GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

	 Particulars of last three Annual General Meetings are given below. 

	 Details of the last three Annual General Meetings (AGM). 

		  AGM for the Financial	 Date & Time of AGM 
	 Year ended	

			  31st March, 2023	 03rd July 2023  at 12.05 PM

			  31st March, 2022	 30th June 2022 at 11.00 AM 

			  31st March, 2021	 23rd June 2021 at 11.00 AM 

EGM / Postal Ballot meetings:

There was one EGM conducted during the financial year 2023-2024 on 27th November 2023 at 
12.00 Noon.
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An event through physical and e-voting was carried out for approval (of the appointment of the 
Chairman and Managing Director and Regularization of Director appointment).

All the resolutions set out in the AGM Notice were passed by the Shareholders (e-voting).

The Annual General Meetings were held at the Registered Office of the Company.

7.1	 Pledge of shares held by Promoters: No pledge has been created by the Promoters on 
the equity shares held as on March 31, 2024.

7.2	 Special resolutions:

The company has passed special resolution for the appointment of Sri. T N Ramanathan as 
Independent Director for the Second term of five years from 01.04.2024 in the Annual General 
Meeting held on 03rd July, 2023.

The company has also passed a special resolution to appoint Sri. K.Thiagarajan as the Chairman 
and Managing Director of the Company with effect from 11.09.2023 for a period of Five years in 
the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 27th November, 2023.

At the ensuing 77th Annual General Meeting to be held on 24th July, 2024  no resolution is 
proposed to be passed by postal ballot. 

7.2.1	 Pursuant to Section 108 and other applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 
2014, and other applicable requirements, voting at the 77th Annual General 
Meeting will be made through electronic voting. The electronic voting period  
commences on 19th July, 2024 (9:00 am) and ends on  23rd  July, 2024  (6:00 
pm) both days inclusive. 

7.2.2	 Scrutinizer for electronic voting : Mr. S.Ramalingam, Practising Company 
Secretaries (C.P No. 23495) of Madurai, has been appointed as the Scrutiniser 
to scrutinize the electronic voting process fairly and transparently and to give 
his report to the Chairman.

8.	 DISCLOSURES:

8.1	 Details of transactions with related parties have been reported in the Notes to Accounts.  
All the transactions with related parties are at arm’s length basis.  All transactions 
entered into with Related Parties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and as 
per Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 during the financial year were in the ordinary course of business 
and on an arm’s length pricing basis. 
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There were no materially significant transactions with the related parties during the year, that 
were in conflict with the interests of the company and that require approval of the company in 
terms of SEBI (LODR) Regulations.

The Transactions with the related parties of a routine nature have been reported as per Ind AS 24 
notified under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

8.2	 Disclosure of Accounting Treatment: Pursuant to the notification issued by the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 16th February, 2015 relating to the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 the Company has adopted “Ind AS” 
with effect from 1st April 2017. Accordingly, the Financial Statements for the year 
2023-24 have been prepared in compliance with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015.

8.3	 Suitable disclosure as required by the Accounting Standards (AS18) has been made 
in the notes to the Ind AS Financial Statements.

8.4	 There were no instances of non-compliance by the Company or any penalties or 
strictures imposed on the Company by stock exchanges or SEBI or any statutory 
authority on any matter related to capital markets during the last three years.

8.5	 The Company has in place an Employee Concern (Whistle Blower) which is also 
available on the Company’s website. No personnel has been denied access to the 
Audit Committee to lodge their grievances.

8.6	 All mandatory requirements have been appropriately complied with.

8.7	 The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms a part of the Directors’ 
Report.

8.8	 No presentations were made to institutional investors and analysts during the year.

8.9	 The Company does not have any Subsidiary or Associate.

8.10	 There have been no public issues, rights issues, or other public offerings during 
the past five years. The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any 
convertible instruments.

8.11	 Disclosures

a)	 Related Party Transactions

	 All transactions entered into with Related Parties as defined under the 
Companies Act, 2013, and the Listing Regulations during the financial year 
2023-24 were in the ordinary course of business, and arms arms-length basis 
and approval of the Audit Committee was also obtained. Necessary disclosures 
regarding Related Party Transactions are given in the notes to the Financial 
Statements.
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	 The Board has approved a policy for Related Party Transactions and the same 
has been uploaded on the website of the Company. The web link thereto is 
as under https://www.vtmill.com/images/investor/Policy_on_Related_Party_
Transactions.pdf

b) 	 Compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS)

	 In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company has followed 
the accounting policies and practices as prescribed in the Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS). The significant accounting policies which are consistently 
applied have been set out in the Notes to the Financial Statements. There is no 
deviation in following the treatments prescribed in Ind AS in the preparation 
of financial statements for the year 2023-24.

c) 	 Statutory Compliance, Strictures and Penalties

	 The Company has complied with all the requirements of the Stock Exchanges 
as well as the regulations and guidelines prescribed by the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (SEBI). There were no penalties or strictures imposed 
on the Company by Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority on 
any matter related to capital markets during the last three years.

	 The Company has obtained an Annual Compliance Certificate for the year 
ended 31st March 2024 as per SEBI Circular from Mr. S. Ramalingam, B.L., 
ACS., Practising Company Secretary confirming compliance with SEBI 
regulations.

 d) 	 CMD & CFO Certification

	 The CMD Sri. K. Thiagarajan and CFO Sri. K. Deenadayalan, has certified 
to the Board about the financial statements and other matters as required by 
the SEBI Listing Regulations. The certificate is appended as an Annexure to 
this report. They have also provided quarterly certificates on financial results 
while placing the same before the Board pursuant to Regulation 33 of the 
SEBI Listing Regulations.

e) 	 Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regulation 22 of Listing Regulations, the Company has formulated Vigil 
Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy to enable Directors and employees of the 
Company to report concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected 
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fraud or violation of Code of Conduct, that could adversely impact the 
Company’s operations, business performance, securely and confidentially. The 
said policy provides adequate safeguards against victimization of Directors/
employees. The Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy is available on the 
website of the Company under the web-link  -

	 https://www.vtmill.com/images/investor/Whistle-Blower-Policy-Vigil-
Mechanism.pdf. 

	 The Company affirms that no personnel of the Company has been denied 
access to the Audit Committee to lodge their grievances.

f) 	 Certificate on Non-disqualification of Directors

	 The Company has obtained a certificate from Mr. S. Ramalingam, Practising 
Company Secretary confirming that none of the Directors of the Company have 
been debarred or disqualified by the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such authority from being appointed or 
continuing as Director of the Company and the same is also attached to this 
Report.

g) 	 Subsidiaries

The Company does not have a Subsidiary or Associate.

9.	 MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

9.1	 Quarterly results are published in the Business Standard (All India Edition)  and 
the Tamil version thereof in Malai Malar, within the stipulated time (within 48 
hours) after the Board meeting where the results are approved as mentioned in the 
SEBI Regulations. These financial results and quarterly shareholding pattern are 
electronically transmitted/Uploaded to the stock exchange and are also uploaded on 
the Company’s website www.vtmill.com. 

9.2	 Shareholder communication including Notices and Annual Reports are being sent to 
the email addresses of Members available with the Company and the Depositories. 
Annual Accounts are sent to Members at least 25 days before the date of the Annual 
General Meeting.

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forming part of the Annual  Report is 
enclosed. [Regulation 34 and Schedule V of the Listing SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.]
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 9.3	 The Company’s website:

	 www.vtmill.com makes online announcements of Board Meetings results of the 
quarterly financial results, announcement of the date of the Annual General Meeting 
and proposed dividend, and other announcements. Copies of Notices sent to 
Shareholders are also available on the website, along with the newspaper publication.

9.4	 Date of payment of Dividend:

	 Dividends if declared in the Annual General Meeting will be paid to the shareholders 
within the stipulated time as per the Act.

9.5	 Status of Physical shares-Suspense Escrow demat account:

	 As per SEBI Notification dated 24th January, 2022 and SEBI Circular dated 25th   
January, 2022 in case the securities holder/claimant fails to submit the demat 
clearance, as given by the RTA (K Fin technologies Ltd) to the DP within the specified 
period of 120 days (as per circular dated 1st April, 2022) RTA / Issuer Companies 
shall credit the securities to the Suspense Escrow Demat Account of the Company, 
exclusively opened by the Company (as directed by SEBI) for this purpose.

	 Therefore, due to the above reason and due to the SEBI circular on early conversion 
of physical shares into Demat shares, the physical shareholders shall have to adhere 
to the timeline and also dematerialize their shares as early as possible.  

9.6	 Address for communication :

	 All communication regarding share transactions, change of address, bank mandates, 
nominations, etc. should be addressed to the Company and the Registrars and Share 
Transfer Agents of the Company at the following address :

	 Registrar & Transfer Agent: 
KFin Technologies  Ltd. 
(Unit: VTM LIMITED) 
Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot No 31 & 32,   
Financial District, Nanakramguda,  
Serilingampally Mandal,   Hyderabad – 500 032. 
Ph : +91 040 67161518   
Contact Person: Mr.D.SURESH BABU - Manager – Corporate Registry.

	 The shareholders should also address their correspondence to:- 
Smt K Preyatharshine, 
Company Secretary 
VTM LIMITED 
Chairman’s Office:  Thiagarajar Mills Premises 
Kappalur, Madurai-625 008. 
Phone: 0452-2482595
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Grievances, if any, may also be addressed to the Company Secretary at email at complianceofficer@
vtmill.com

Shareholders are requested to mention their Folio Nos., DP-ID, and Client ID in case of Demat 
shares, phone and mobile nos., and their Email ID so that the Company/Compliance Officer can 
contact them and redress their complaints immediately. However, for instructions like the change 
of bank mandate, change of address, transfers & transmission of shares, etc. letters duly signed by 
the Shareholders concerned should be sent, otherwise, such requests cannot be processed by the 
Registrars. Email ID of Shareholders will have to be registered with the Company to enable the 
Company or the Registrars to communicate electronically. 

Communication to shareholders on Email - Green Initiative of Exchanges:

As mandated by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), and as per ESG Guidelines 
(Environment Social and Governance Guidelines) specified documents like Notices, Annual 
Reports, ECS advice for Dividends, etc. are sent to the shareholders at their email address, as 
registered with their Depository Participants / Company / Registrar and Transfer Agents (RTA), 
which help in prompt delivery of a document, reduce paper consumption, save trees and avoid 
loss of documents in transit. Due to this reason Shareholders holding shares in Physical form are 
requested to send their email id to company.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

	 1.	 Date, Time and Venue of the 	 :	 24th July, 2024 at 10.00 am at 
		  Annual General Meeting.     		  the Registered Office at Sulakarai, 
				    Virudhunagar.

	 2.	 Dates of Book Closure/Record	 :	 Register of Members will be closed from  
		  date for Financial Year 2023-24	  	 12 July, 2024 to 24th  July, 2024.

	 3.	 Results for Quarter ending 	 :	 4th   Week of July, 2024. 
		  June 30, 2024 (Provisional)	      

		  Results for Quarter ending  	 :	 3rd Week of October, 2024. 
		  September 30, 2024 (Provisional)	

     		  Results for Quarter ending 	 :	 3rd Week of January, 2025. 
		  December 31, 2024 (Provisional)	

     		  Financial Calendar – 1st April 2024	 :	 4th Week of April, 2025. 
		  To 31st March 2025 (Audited)	
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE

To 
The Members of VTM Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by VTM Limited 
(‘the Company’) for the year ended March 31, 2024 as per Regulations 17-27, Clauses (b) to (i) 
of Regulation 46(2) and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing 
Regulations’).

Management’s responsibility for compliance with the conditions of the listing 
regulations

The Company’s Management is responsible for compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance 
including the preparation and maintenance of all relevant supporting records and documents as 
stipulated under the Listing Regulations. This responsibility includes the design, implementation 
and maintenance of corporate governance process relevant to the compliance of the conditions. 
Responsibility also includes collecting, collating and validating data and designing, implementing 
and monitoring of Corporate Governance process suitable for ensuring compliance with the 
above-mentioned Listing Regulations.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company 
for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor 
an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. Pursuant to the requirements 
of the Listing Regulations, it is our responsibility to provide a reasonable assurance whether the 
Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing 
Regulations for the year ended March 31,2024.

We conducted our examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates 
for Special Purposes (Revised 2016), Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance, 
both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and the Standards on 
Auditing specified under the Section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, in so far as applicable for 
the purpose of this certificate. 

The Guidance Note on Reports or certificates for Special Purposes requires that we comply with 
the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI. We have complied with the 
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relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for 
Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance 
and Related Services Engagements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we 
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as specified 
in Regulations 17 to 27, Clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and paragraphs 
C, D and E of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, as applicable.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 
nor as to the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of 
the Company.

Restrictions on use

This certificate is addressed and provided to the members of the Company solely for the purpose 
to enable the Company to comply with the requirement of the Listing Regulations, and it should 
not be used by any other person or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept or 
assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this 
certificate is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing.

	 For CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP 
	 Chartered Accountants 
	 Firm Registration No.004915S/ S200036

	                         Sd/- 
	 (CHINNSAMY GANESAN) 
	 Partner 
	 Membership No. 027501  
	 UDIN: 24027501BKFTLL2107

Place: Chennai 
Date: May 23, 2024
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Annexure II

S.Ramalingam, M.Com.,BL.,ACS.	 7/14 Shri lakshmi Illam, Kurinji St., 
Company Secretary in Practice	 Ganapathy Nagar, New Vilangudi 
ACS 61773 CP.No:23495	 Madurai-625018, Phone: 9894311704

Form No. MR-3   

     SECRETARIAL  AUDIT  REPORT

FOR   THE   FINANCIAL YEAR   ENDED   31st March, 2024.

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members, 
VTM LIMITED, 
(CIN : L17111TN1946PLC003270) 
SULAKARAI, 
Virudhunagar – 626 003

I have conducted the Secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 
the adherence to good corporate practices by VTM LIMITED (hereinafter called the company). 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating 
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed 
and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, 
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby 
report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year 
ended on 31.03.2024 complied with  the  statutory  provisions  listed hereunder and also that the 
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the 
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed   and  other  records  
maintained  by  the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 according to the 
provisions of:

 (i)	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made  thereunder;

(ii)	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the  rules  made 
thereunder;
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(iii)	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv)	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made 
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment 
and External Commercial 	 Borrowings;

(v)	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

(a)	 SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 & 2018.

(b)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of 
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(c)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of  Insider  Trading) 
Regulations, 1992;

(d)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

(e)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an issue and Share 
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act  and dealing 
with client;

(e)  	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 
Regulations, 2009; and

(f)    The  Securities  and Exchange  Board  of  India  (Buyback of Securities) 
Regulations, 1998;

(vi)	 Taxation Laws, Labour Laws and Environmental Laws.  

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i)	 Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii)	 SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read 
with the Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock  
Exchange.

(iii)	 SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and all other regulations of 
SEBI as applicable to the Company.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc., mentioned above.
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I  further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Managing 
Director, Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors and a Woman Director. The changes 
in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were 
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notices were given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed 
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and 
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for 
meaningful participation at the meeting.

The decisions of the Board have been unanimously passed.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate 
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable 
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period the company has convened an  Extra-ordinary 
General Meeting for appointment of Mr. K. Thiagarajan as Chairman and Managing Director 
(DIN 03638370) after giving required notices to the members of the Company duly complied 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, in the place of Mr. T. Kannan, Former Chairman 
and Managing Director, who passed away on 23.05.2023.

I further report that during the audit period Ms. K. Preyatharshine was appointed as Company 
secretary of the Company further to the retirement of Mr. S. Paramasivam, Company secretary of 
the Company, 

I further report that during the audit period Mr. K. Deenadayalan was appointed as CFO in the 
place of Mr. AN. Paramasivam, CFO of the Company

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms 
an integral part of this report.

		 S.Ramalingam, 

		 Company Secretary in Practice 
		 ACS 61773 /C P No.:23495 
		 PR Code :  2352/2022		

Date     :  20.05.2024 
Place    :  Madurai - 625 018.

UDIN :  A061773F000404401
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‘Annexure A’ 
(To the Secretarial Audit Report of VTM Limited for the financial year ended 31/03/2024)

To,

The Members, 
VTM LIMITED, 
(CIN : L17111TN1946PLC003270) 
SULAKARAI, 
Virudhunagar – 626 003

My Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 31/03/2024 of even date is to be read 
along with this letter.

1.	 Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. 
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2.	 I have followed the audit practices and the processes as were appropriate to obtain 
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The 
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial 
records. We believe that the processes and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis 
for my opinion.

3.	 I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 
Accounts of the Company.

4.	 Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance 
of laws, rules and regulation and happening of events etc.

5.	 The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 
standards is the responsibility of Management. My examination was limited to the 
verification of procedure on test basis.

6.	 The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of 
the Company.

	 Signature: Sd/- S. Ramalingam 
	 Company Secretary in practice 
	 ACS 61773  CP.No:23495 
Date : 20.05.2024 	 PR Code :  2352/2022 
Place : Madurai - 625 018. 
UDIN :  A061773F000404401
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To

The Members, 
VTM LIMITED, 
(CIN : L17111TN1946PLC003270) 
SULAKARAI, 
Virudhunagar – 626 003

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the 
Directors of VTM LIMITED having CIN : L17111TN1946PLC003270 and having registered 
office at Sulakarai, Virudhunagar-626003 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced 
before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with 
Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. In my opinion and 
to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification 
Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations 
furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the 
Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March 2024 have 
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other 
Statutory Authority.

	 Sr. 	 Name of Director	 DIN	 Date of appointment  
	 No 			   in Company

	 1.	 Sri. K. Thiagarajan (CMD)	 03638370	 23.08.2013

	 2.	 Smt.Uma Kannan	 00467462	 25.03.2015

	 3.	 Sri.RM.Somasundaram	 00071510	 01.12.1984

	 4.	 Sri.TN.Ramanathan	 02561794	 01.04.2019

	 5.	 Sri. Ganesh Ananthakrishnan	 00003586	 25.03.2021
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	 6.	 Sri.L.Sevugan	 03580186	 25.03.2021

	 7.	 Sri.Chinnakonda Rajendran Venkatesh	 00122065	 25.04.2022

	 8.	 Sri. Mariappan Anbukani	 00888339	 28.10.2022

	 9.	 Sri.Vethachalam Kasinathan	 10308450	 11.09.2023

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the 
responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these based on my verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of 
the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 
affairs of the Company.

	 Signature: Sd./-

	 Name  of  Company Secretary  in practice: S.Ramalingam. 
	 ACS No.61733 C P No. :23495 
	 PR No :2352/2022

Date  : 21.05.2024 
Place :  Madurai - 625 018.

UDIN :  A061773F000410638
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ANNEXURE-IV  TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

PARTICULARS OF ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND 
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO REQUIRED UNDER THE COMPANIES 
(ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014.

1.  STEPS TAKEN FOR CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

Energy Conservation:

Power generated from Wind electric generators continues to be utilized by the company, resulting 
in savings to the company. 

Also, previous years’ efforts in reducing compressors’ power consumption have resulted in the 
company’s savings.

2.  STEPS  TAKEN  FOR  ALTERNATE  SOURCES  OF  ENERGY  &  
CONSERVATION OF EQUIPMENTS.

New Looms Purchase:

10 PICANOL 340cm OPTIMAX I CONNECT Rapier Dobby looms are imported from Belgium 
at a cost of Rs.723.52 Lakhs and installed to meet our Home Textiles Unit requirements. Through 
the state-of-the-art weaving machines, we can weave larger and complicated dobby designs with 
special yarn up to 130” cloth width. 

New DG Set:

To manage the power failure situation and deliver the goods at the committed time to the customers, 
one 250KVA DG set is purchased at a cost of Rs.15.03 Lakhs from M/S. CUMMINS and installed 
in our Home Textiles unit. During power failure, we need not stop the production.

Fabric Inspection Machines:

To improve the inspection quality and ergonomics of the operators, 04 Nos. Cloth Inspection 
machines are purchased at a cost of Rs.16.65 Lakhs and installed in our grey fabric warehouse 
and 01 wider width inspection machine for finished fabric inspection at a cost of Rs.7.46 Lakhs is 
installed in our Home Textiles unit.

New Boiler with Briquettes (Green fuel) / waste firewood as fuel:

With continuous evaluation and operation using green fuel, a New Boiler with 2.5 Ton capacity 
and at a cost of Rs.89.15 Lakhs was put to use in the place of the existing Boiler (4 Tons which 
was underutilized), the company expects to save in monetary terms as well as reduction in CO2 
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emissions, when compared to the use of conventional fuels. The steam cost is also reduced by 
20%. 

Further the distance between Boiler and Utility Department has got reduced considerably 
thereby resulting in reduction in transmission loss.  The advantages are the increase in Feed 
Water Temperature and lesser condensate accrues. With the installation of this New Boiler with 
Briquettes technology, the dependence on Fossil fuel is substantially minimized.  

Alternate Source of energy:

Environment Social and Governance (ESG):

As with the current requirement/trend of leaning more on ESG, the Company is in the process of 
increasing Solar Plant Capacity from 500 KW to 908 KW at a cost of Rs.210 Lakhs, where the 
erections are completed in the current Financial Year, will result in further reduction of power cost 
in the times to come, and to that extent of generation the use of conventional fuel dependence is 
minimized.

VTM-SULAKARAI
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Note:1. No standard rate of consumption is available.

         2.	As the company is producing numerous varieties or sorts of cloth, separate details for  
	   each variety or sort are not given.

II. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT:

The Humidification plant was replaced with newer one with Energy Efficient Motors.

III. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

      The company has earned during the year under report, foreign exchange equivalent to 
Rs.9,816.31 Lakhs ( FOB value of exports ) through direct exports. 
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The foreign exchange outgo during the period is as given below vs Rs.528.75 Lakhs spent (in 
total) in the Previous Financial year.

	 Capital Goods	 Rs.711.95 Lakhs

	 Components & Spares	 Rs. 43.71 Lakhs

	 Total –Imported purchase-C.I.F Value	 Rs.755.66 Lakhs

Amidst challenges, the company is striving to expand the export market segment by broadening 
its geographical sweep.   

	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

		

Kappalur, Madurai.	 K. Thiagarajan	  
23rd May, 2024.	 Chairman & Managing Director 
	 [DIN:03638370]	                   
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ANNEXURE - VII

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES  
CSR Policy of the Company

1. 	 Brief outline of the CSR Policy of the company:

	 The policy encompasses the company’s philosophy on giving back to society as a 
Corporate Citizen and lays down the guidelines /mechanism for undertaking socially useful 
programme for sustainable development of rural communities/education purposes.

2. 	 Composition of CSR Committee:  

	 The CSR Committee was charged with the responsibilities to discharge functions related 
to CSR activities to be carried out as per Schedule VII of Companies Act 2013 and the 
amendments made thereon. As per notification issued by MCA, there is no necessity to 
form CSR Committee if the prescribed CSR expenditure does not exceed Rs.50 Lakhs in 
the year, the Board of Directors can discharge the CSR committee functions and activities. 
Therefore CSR Committee got disbanded and future review of CSR obligations, including 
progress monitoring, co-ordination with implementing agency, etc., came under the purview 
of Board of Directors on and from 01.04.2021.

3. 	 Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR  Committee, CSR Policy and CSR 
projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company.       

	 www.vtmill.com                              

4. 	 Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-
rule (3) of rule 8  of  the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, 
if applicable (attach the report).  

	 Not Applicable

5. 	 Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for 
set off for the financial year, if any:
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6.	 Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)	 Rs. 1140.95 Lakhs

7.	 (a)	 Two percent of average net profit of the company as  
		  per section 135(5)                                                     	 Rs.22.82 Lakhs

	 (b) 	Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or  
		  programmes or activities of the previous  
		  financial  years.                                                           	 Nil 

	 (c) 	Amount required to be set off for the financial year, 
		  if any                                                                          	 Rs 4.04 Lakhs 

	 (d)	 Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c).  	 Rs 18.78 Lakhs

8.	 (a) 	CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

(b) --
(c) --

(d) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

** The amount Rs 4,04,000/- is the contribution made by the company to the on-going project in 
the year 21-22 and 22-23, which is set off against this year’s spent obligation.
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(e)	 Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

(f)	 Amount spent in Administrative Overheads:  NIL

(g)	 Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable:  NIL

(h)	 Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e)	 Rs. 22.95 lakhs

(i)	 Excess amount for set off, if any
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9.	 (a)    Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Nil

(b) 	 Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding 
financial year(s):

10.	 In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so 
created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year 

	 Not applicable

	 (asset-wise details) - Nil

i.	 Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s):     NA

ii.	 Amount of CSR spent for creation or   acquisition of capital   asset:   NA   

iii.	 Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such 
capital asset is registered,  their address etc:         NA

iv.	 Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete 
address and location of the capital asset):        NA
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 11.  	 Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net 
profit as per section 135(5).             

	 Not applicable

                                

K. Thiagarajan	 Uma Kannan 
Chairman and Managing Director	 Director 
(DIN: 03638370)	 (DIN: 00467462)
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Annexure VIII

Chairman & Managing Director’s Certificate

Annual Certificate under Regulation 34(3) read with Part D of Schedule V to the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

DECLARATION

As required under Regulation 34(3) read with Part D of Schedule V to the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, I hereby declare that all the Board 
members and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have complied with the Code of 
Conduct of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024.

	 K. Thiagarajan

	 Chairman & Managing Director

	 (DIN: 03638370)
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Annexure IX

Compliance Certificate under Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015:

We, K. Thiagarajan, Chairman and Managing Director and K. Deenadayalan, Chief Financial 
Officer of the Company certify that -

A.	 We have reviewed the Financial Statements and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 
31.3.2024, and to the best of our knowledge and belief:

(i)	 These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material 
fact or contain statement that might be misleading; 

(ii)	 These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and 
comply with existing accounting standards, applicable laws, and regulations. 

B.	 There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the 
company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal, or violative of the Company’s code 
of conduct. 

C.	 We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial 
reporting and we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the 
Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the Auditors and the 
Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, if any, of 
which they are aware and the steps they have taken or propose to take to rectify those 
deficiencies.

D.	 We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee that: 

i.	 There are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during 
the year.

ii.	 The company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) in terms of 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 for the current financial year 
and the same has been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and 

iii.	 There are no instances of fraud of which we became aware and the involvement 
therein if any of the management or an employee having a significant role in the 
Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

	 K.Thiagarajan  
	 Chairman & Managing Director 
	 [DIN: 03638370] 

Date  :  23.05.2024	 K.Deenadayalan 
Place : Madurai	 Chief Financial Officer
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Annexure X: 

Remuneration Policy

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of four Directors of which three are 
Independent Directors and one Executive Director who is the CMD of the company as the 
Members of the Committee and as such complies with the obligations of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the corporate governance requirements of the Listing Agreement with stock exchanges. 
The Chairperson of this Committee is an Independent Director. The Chairperson of the Board of 
Directors is a member of this Committee but will not Chair this Committee.

The Committee operates under formal terms of reference which were approved by the Board on 
April 29, 2014. These terms of reference have been prepared in a manner to generally maintain 
overall continuity with the nomination and remuneration policies of the company while complying 
with the Companies Act, 2013, and the Listing Agreements with stock exchanges.

Role and Responsibilities

The Committee’s foremost priorities are to ensure that the Company has the best possible 
leadership and maintains a clear plan for both Executive and Non-Executive Director succession. 
The Committee also reviews Senior Management succession. Its prime focus is therefore on the 
strength of the Board and the Senior Management team and ensuring that appointments are made 
on merit, against objective criteria, selecting the best candidate for the post. The Committee advises 
the Board on the appointments, retirements, and resignations from the Board and its Committees. 
It also advises the Board on similar changes to the Senior Management of the Company.

The Committee and its members are empowered to obtain outside legal or other independent 
professional advice, at the cost of the Company, in relation to its deliberations and to secure the 
attendance at its meetings of any employee or other parties it considers necessary.

Criteria for appointments and independence of Directors

When considering appointments to the Board and its Committees, the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee will draw up a specification for the role taking into consideration the 
balance of skills, knowledge, and experience of its existing members, the diversity of the Board, 
and the Company’s ongoing requirements. The Company believes that diversity underpins the 
successful operation of an effective Board and embraces diversity as a means of enhancing the 
business.

The recruitment process then focuses on appointing candidates who meet the criteria, and who 
have the relevant professional knowledge, professional qualifications, and experience. Successful 
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candidates are likely to have demonstrable leadership qualities and interpersonal communication 
skills, act with integrity, and have international business exposure.

Care is taken to ensure that all proposed appointees have sufficient time available to devote to 
the role, are compliant with the rules, policies, and values of our Company, and do not have any 
conflicts of interest.

On appointments or promotions, the Committee will typically use the Remuneration Policy of 
the Company to determine ongoing remuneration. However, the Committee retains the discretion 
to make appropriate remuneration decisions outside the Standard Policy to meet specific 
circumstances.

Remuneration Policy

The overarching philosophy for remuneration within the company is to attract, retain, and motivate 
individuals of the caliber necessary to successfully implement the Company’s business strategy. 
In particular, this means ensuring that incentive plans are appropriate to encourage enhanced 
performance and avoid rewarding underperformance. In viewing and setting the Company’s 
remuneration policy, the Committee seeks to balance the interests of its employees and those of 
its stakeholders, to support Company strategy, where a meaningful portion of remuneration is 
performance-linked.

Remuneration Policy for Managing Director:

An appropriate level of remuneration may be set to ensure that the Company can appoint a 
Managing Director with the necessary skill and experience by offering him market-competitive 
remuneration reflecting his individual experience, role, and contribution. The appointment may 
be for a tenure of such years from the date of his appointment not exceeding the period in terms 
of Section 196 and as prescribed under Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013. The individual’s 
performance will be reviewed annually by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 
recommended to the Board enabling it to decide the remuneration payable to the Managing 
Director. 

The total remuneration package may be designed to provide an annual remuneration payable 
by way of commission and other perquisites as decided by the Board of Directors however, not 
exceeding 5% of the net profits of the company computed in accordance with the provisions 
of Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as determined by the Board of Directors of the 
Company for each financial year within the maximum permissible limit. Further, in the event 
of his being Managing Director in any other company, such remuneration shall not exceed the 
higher maximum limit admissible from any one of these companies, in terms of Schedule V to the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
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The Managing Director is not entitled to sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board or the 
Committees where he will be the Chairman/Member.  He is entitled to have the Chairman’s Office 
at his convenience at the Company’s expense. 

Remuneration Policy for Non-Executive Directors

Non-Executive Directors are entitled to sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board or its 
Committees at rates that are within the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. They 
are also entitled to commission on net profits, as determined by the Board from time to time, not 
exceeding 1% of the net profits of the Company for that year. The level of remuneration is set to 
attract and retain Non-Executive Directors of the necessary skill and experience by offering them 
market-competitive remuneration. 

Non-Executive directors do not participate in Board discussions that relate to their remuneration. 
They receive reimbursement of reasonable expenses incurred in attending the Board, Committee, 
and other ad hoc meetings.

None of the Non-Executive Directors is entitled to receive compensation for loss of office at any 
time or participate in any retirement plans. 

Non-Executive Independent Directors are appointed in compliance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, and must adhere to the Code for Independent Directors laid down under 
Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013, and retain their independence during the entire tenure 
of appointment as an Independent Director.  The terms of service of Non-Executive Independent 
Directors are contained in letters of appointment issued to them after their appointment at a 
general meeting of the Company. The current policy for Non-Executive Independent Directors 
of the Company is to serve for a maximum period of two terms of five years each, with review at 
the end of the first five-year term, subject always to mutual agreement and annual performance 
evaluation. 

Remuneration is paid subject to deduction of Income Tax at source and payment of applicable 
GST.

Remuneration to Senior Management Personnel

Senior Management Personnel include one level below the Managing Director. Accordingly, 
the Personnel such as Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary, Vice President / General 
Manager / Deputy General Manager but not including Administrative Staff. An appropriate level 
of remuneration is set to ensure that the Company can recruit and retain Senior Management with 
the necessary skills, professional qualifications, experience, and compliance with the rules and 
policies of the Company. Market competitive remuneration is offered to individuals reflecting their 
experience, and contribution within the Company. The individual’s performance is reviewed from 
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time to time with changes in remuneration normally. In considering any increase in base salary, 
the Committee will mainly consider the role, changes in job scope, responsibility, and complexity. 
The total remuneration package is designed to provide an appropriate balance between fixed 
and variable components with a focus on long-term variable pay so that strong performance is 
incentivized but without encouraging excessive risk-taking.

Remuneration arrangements of Senior Management Personnel consist of the same elements as 
those of other employees i.e. Basic Salary, HRA, and other allowances, retirement benefits (i.e. 
Provident Fund and Gratuity as per the Company’s Schemes applicable to all employees), and 
perquisites as per Rules of the Company applicable to all employees according to their seniority 
including insurance, car and fuel perquisites.

As applicable to all employees, Senior Management Personnel are entitled to avail themselves of 
30 days of leave in a year and unavailed leave can be accumulated as per the Company’s rules up 
to a maximum of 30 days.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of VTM Limited

Report on the audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of VTM Limited (“the Company”), which comprise 
the balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the statement of profit and loss (including other 
comprehensive income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for 
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013 
(“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and its 
profits, total comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended 
as on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in 
the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the Company in accordance with the code of ethics issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant 
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and 
the ICAI’s code of ethics.We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and 
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.In our opinion and based on the information 
and explanations given to us, there are no key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. 
The other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and 
Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility 
Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit 
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and 
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time, and other accounting principles generally accepted 
in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The management is responsible to ensure that the accounting software used by the Company for 
maintaining its books of account has the features of (a) recording an audit trail of each and every 
transaction and  (b) creating an edit log of each change made in the books of account along with 
the date when such changes are made. The management is also responsible to ensuring that the 
audit trail is not disabled.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
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and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process.

Auditors’responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

l	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

l	 Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on 
whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls

l	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

l	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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l	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of 
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and 
(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report 
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1. 	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, we give inAnnexure “A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 
and 4 of the Order.

2.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best 
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c)	 The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by 
this report are in agreement with the books of account;
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(d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act;

(e)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified 
as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) 
of the Act;

(f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 
our separate report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion 
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial 
controls over financial reporting; 

(g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and 
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance 
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act; and

(h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and 
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial 
position in its financial statements – Refer Note 45 to the financial statements;

b.	 The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or 
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts; and

c.	 There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to 
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company

d.	 The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, 
other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, 

i.	 no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or 
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any 
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ‘Intermediaries’, with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, 
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in 
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’ or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 
and
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ii.	 no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), 
including foreign entities ‘Funding Parties’, with the understanding, whether recorded 
in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend 
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the Funding Party ‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’ or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

iii.	 Based onaudit procedures carried out by us, that we have considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us 
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material 
misstatement.

e.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the dividend declared or paid during the year by the company is in compliance 
with section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

f.	 Based on the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting 
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording 
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for 
all relevant transactions recorded in the software. We also report that during 
the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail 
feature being tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the 
company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

	 For CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP 
	 Chartered Accountants  
	 Firm’s Registration No. 004915S/ S200036

	 Sd/-

	 (CHINNSAMY GANESAN) 
	 Partner 
	 Membership No. 027501 
	 UDIN: 24027501BKFTLM1248 

Place: Chennai 
Date: May 23, 2024
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’ section of 
our report to the members of VTM Limited of even date)

1. 	 (a)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

	 The Company does not have any intangible assets.

(b)	 The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of property, plant 
and equipment in a phased manner over a period of three years, which, in our opinion, 
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

	 Pursuant to the program, certain property, plant and equipment were physically 
verified by the management during the year. According to the information and 
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to usand 
based on the examination of the conveyance deeds provided to us, we report that, the 
title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings which are 
freehold, are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date. 

	 In respect of immovable properties of land and building that have been taken on 
lease and disclosed as property, plant and equipment in the financial statements, the 
lease agreements are in the name of the Company.

(d)	 The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right 
of use asset) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (i)(d) of the Order is not 
applicable.

(e)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there 
are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any 
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 
1988) and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (i)(e) of the Order is not 
applicable.

2.	 (a)	 The inventories have been physically verified by the management during the year. In 
our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is 
appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of 
inventory were noticed on such verification.
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		 (b)	 The Company has a sanctioned working capital limit in excess of five crore rupees, 
in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current 
assets. The quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with such banks or 
financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account of the Company.

3.	 In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the Company 
has not made investments in/provided any guarantee or security/granted any loans or 
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability 
Partnerships or other parties. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iii)of the Order is not applicable.

4.	 In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the Company 
has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or given any security to which the 
provisions of section 185 of the Act are applicable. 

	 In respect of investments made by the Company and loans given to parties other than those 
covered in Section 185 of the Act, the Company had complied with the provisions of section 
186 of the Act.

5.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits during the year. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (v) of the Order is not applicable.

6.	 We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to 
the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 
148 of the Act, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records 
have been made and maintained. However, we have not carried out a detailed examination 
of the same.

7.	 In our opinion and accordingto the information and explanations given to us:

(a)	 Amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory 
dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, 
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, 
cess and other material statutory dues have been generally regularly deposited by the 
Company with the appropriate authorities.

	 No undisputed amounts payable in respect of goods and services tax, provident fund, 
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty 
of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as 
at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became 
payable.
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(b)	 Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a), which have not been deposited 
on account of dispute are given below:

	  	 Nature of	 Amount	 Period to which	 Forum where  
	 Statute	 dues	 (INR)	 the amount relates	 the dispute is  
					     pending

Income Tax Act,	 Income Tax*	 2,60,13,380	 2017-18	 CIT (Appeal), 	
1961				    Madurai

Employees 	 Provident	 28,72,163	 2021-22	 PF 
Provident Funds 	 Fund Dues*			   Commissioner, 
and Miscellaneous 				    Madurai 
Provisions Act, 
1952	

* Net of taxes paid under protest

8.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no 
transactions not recorded in the books of account that have been surrendered or disclosed 
as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 
1961). Accordingly, paragraph 3 (viii) of the Order is not applicable.

9.	 (a)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the 
payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(b)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company is not declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
other lender.

(c) 	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
term loans obtained during the year were applied for the purpose for which they were 
availed.

(d)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, funds 
raised on short term basis have not been utilised for long term purposes.

(e)	 The Company does not have any subsidiaries/associates/joint-ventures and 
accordingly, paragraphs 3 (ix)(e) and 3 (ix)(f) of the Order are not applicable.

10.	 (a)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public 
offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (x) (a) 
of the Order is not applicable.
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(b)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares 
or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (x) (b) of the Order is not applicable.

11.	 (a)	 To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by any 
person has been noticed or reported during the year.  Accordingly, paragraphs 3 (xi) 
(a) and (b) of the Order are not applicable.

(b)	 To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, no whistle-blower complaints, have been received by the Company 
during the year.

12.	 The Company is not a Nidhi Company and accordingly, Paragraphs 3(xii) of the Order is 
not applicable.

13.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of theAct. 
Where applicable, the details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial 
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

14.	 (a)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has an internal audit system, commensurate with the size and nature of its 
business. 

(b)	 The reports of the internal auditors for the year under audit were considered by us, as 
part of our audit procedures.

15.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

16.	 (a)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act 1934.

(b)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance 
activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of 
India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(c)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations 
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xvi) (c) of the Order 
is not applicable.
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(d)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) and it does not have any other 
companies in the Group. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xvi) (d) of the Order is not 
applicable.

17.	 The Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately 
preceding financial year.

18.	 There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

19.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, 
our knowledge of the board of directors and management plans, there are no material 
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is capable of meeting its 
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of 
one year from the balance sheet date.

20.	 (a)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in 
respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts to be transferred 
to a fund specified in Schedule VII to the Act. 

(b)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there 
are no amount remaining unspent under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act, 
pursuant to any ongoing project, to be transferred to special account in compliance 
with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act. 

21.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company does not have investments in subsidiaries/ associates or joint venture companies. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable.

	 For CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP 
	 Chartered Accountants 
	 Firm Registration No.004915S/ S200036

	 (CHINNSAMY GANESAN) 
	 Partner 
	 Membership No. 027501  
	 UDIN: 24027501BKFTLM1248

Place: Chennai 
Date: May 23, 2024
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’ section 
of our report to the Members of VTM Limited of even date)

Report on the internal financial controls over financial reporting under clause (i) of 
sub- section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of VTM Limited (“the 
Company”) as at March 31, 2024, in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance 
Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the standards on auditing 
prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit 
of internal financial controls. Those standards and the guidance note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and 
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding 
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial control system over financial 
reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations 
of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management of override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to 
the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because 
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has, 
in all material respects, an adequate internal financial control system over financial reporting and 
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 
2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India.

	 For CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP 
	 Chartered Accountants 
	 Firm Registration No.004915S/ S200036

	 (CHINNSAMY GANESAN) 
	 Partner 
	 Membership No. 027501  
	 UDIN: 24027501BKFTLM1248

Place: Chennai 
Date: May 23, 2024
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024	

1	 Corporate Information				  

	 VTM Limited was established in 1946 with the founding principles of setting standards 
in weaving by ensuring that the best of weaving technology was always available. Today, 
the Company is well-established with unique capabilities that allows  to cater to exotic 
constructions in weaving. It has also expanded the capabilities to include special weaves 
and combinations. 255 state-of-the-art looms take pride of place in the manufacturing unit. 
80 Sulzer machines, 06 Rapier leno looms, 163 Air jets and 06 Jacquard machines work 
in tandem to produce 1.7 million meters of fabric every month. It is also equipped with 
adequate equipment to cater to special fabric manufacturing in fine counts and complex 
specifications.					   

2	 Basis of preparation of financial statements				 

	 Statement of Compliance						    

	 These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards 
(Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain 
financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) (to the extent notified) and guidelines issued by the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the 
Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016, as amended from 
time to time.					   

	 Use of estimates						    

	 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles (GAAP) requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial 
statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is 
recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

	 Functional and presentation currency					   

	 These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s 
functional currency. All financial information presented in INR has been rounded to the 
nearest Lakhs (up to two decimals). 
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	 The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 
May 23, 2024						    

2A	 Critical accounting estimates and management judgments

	 In application of the accounting policies, which are described in note 2, the management 
of the Company is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. 
The estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are 
considered to be relevant.					  

	 Information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements 
used in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts 
recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

	 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)					   

	 The residual values and estimated useful life of PPEs and Intangible Assets are assessed 
by the technical team at each reporting date by taking into account the nature of asset, the 
estimated usage of the asset, the operating condition of the asset, past history of replacement 
and maintenance support. Upon review, the management accepts the assigned useful life 
and residual value for computation of depreciation/amortisation.			 

	 Current tax				  

	 Calculations of income taxes for the current period are done based on applicable tax laws and 
management’s judgement by evaluating positions taken in tax returns and interpretations of 
relevant provisions of law.					   

	 Deferred Tax Assets					   

	 Significant management judgement is exercised by reviewing the deferred tax assets at 
each reporting date to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be retained/ 
recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together 
with future tax planning strategies. 					   

	 Fair value					   

	 Management uses valuation techniques in measuring the fair value of financial instruments 
where active market quotes are not available. In applying the valuation techniques, 
management makes maximum use of market inputs and uses estimates and assumptions 
that are, as far as possible, consistent with observable data that market participants would 
use in pricing the instrument. Where applicable data is not observable, management uses its 
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best estimate about the assumptions that market participants would make. These estimates 
may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at 
the reporting date.					   

	 Impairment of Trade Receivables					   

	 The impairment assessment for trade receivables are done based on assumptions about 
risk of default and expected loss rates. The assumptions, selection of inputs for calculation 
of impairment are based on management judgement considering the past history, market 
conditions and forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting date.

	 Impairment of Non-financial assets (PPE)					   

	 The  impairment  assessment of  non-financial  assets  is  determined  based  on  estimation  
of recoverable  amount  of  such  assets.  The  assumptions  used  in  computing  the 
recoverable amount are based on management judgement considering the timing of future 
cash flows, discount rates and the risks specific to the asset.

	 Defined Benefit Plans and Other long term employee benefits		

	 The cost of the defined benefit plan and other long term employee benefits, and the present 
value of such obligation are determined by the independent actuarial valuer. An actuarial 
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments 
in future. Management believes that the assumptions used by the actuary in determination 
of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and attrition rates are reasonable. 
Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and  its  long term  nature, this  obligation 
is  highly sensitive  to changes  in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each 
reporting date.

	 Fair value measurement of financial instruments				  

	 When  the  fair  values  of  financial  assets  and  financial  liabilities  could  not  be 
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, management uses valuation techniques 
including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model, to determine its fair value  The  inputs  
to  these  models  are  taken  from  observable  markets  where possible, but where this 
is not feasible, a degree of judgement is exercised in establishing fair values. Judgements 
include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. 

	 Provisions and contingencies			 

	 The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the 
probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at 
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the reporting date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may therefore vary from 
the figure estimated at end of each reporting period.				  

2B	 Recent accounting pronouncements					   

	 Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the 
existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from 
time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards 
or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.

3	 Material Accounting Policy Information					   

a)	 Current versus non-current classification					  

	 The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ 
non-current classification.					   

	 An asset is treated as current when it is:					   

i)	 Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating 
cycle	

ii)	 Held primarily for the purpose of trading				  

iii)	 Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv)	 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to 
settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period	

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:					   

i)	 It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle			 

ii)	 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading				  

iii)	 It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv)	 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at 
least twelve months after the reporting period				 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.					   

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.	
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	 The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their 
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified 3 months as its 
operating cycle.	

b) 	 Fair value measurement	 				  

	 The Company has applied the fair value measurement wherever necessitated at each 
reporting period.					   

	 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement 
date.  The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to 
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:			 

i)	 In the principal market for the asset or liability;			 

ii)	 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the 
asset or liability.				  

	 The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the 
Company.	

	 The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market 
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market 
participants act in their economic best interest.

	 A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market 
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest 
and the best use or by selling it to another  market participant that would use the asset 
in its highest and best use.			 

	 The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances 
and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use 
of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

	 All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial 
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, 
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
whole:					   

Level 1	 :	 Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active market for identical assets 
or liabilities;
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Level 2	 :	 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant 
to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and

Level 3	 :	 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant 
to the fair value measurement is unobservable.			 

	 For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring 
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in 
the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting 
period. 

	 The Company has designated the respective team leads to determine the policies and 
procedures for both recurring and non - recurring fair value measurement.  External 
valuers are involved, wherever necessary with the approval of Company’s board of 
directors.  Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence 
and whether professional standards are maintained.  			 

	 For the purpose of fair value disclosure, the Company has determined classes of 
assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risk of the asset or 
liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.  The component 
wise fair value measurement is disclosed in the relevant notes.		

c)	 Revenue from contracts with customers					   

Sale of goods					   

	 Revenue from sale of goods is recognised as and when the Company satisfies 
performance obligations by transferring control of the promised goods to its 
customers. The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the 
company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods to the customer. 
The Company does not have any non-cash consideration

	 Revenue is measured at the transaction price  received or receivable, taking into 
account contractually defined terms of payment. It comprises of invoice value of 
goods after deducting discounts, volume rebates and applicable taxes on sale. It also 
excludes value of self-consumption.					  

	 Significant financing component - Generally, the Company receives short-term 
advances from its customers. Using the practical expedient in Ind AS 115, the 
Company does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a 
significant financing component if it expects, at contract inception, that the period 
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between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer and when the 
customer pays for that goods or services will be one year or less.		

	 Sale of services					   

	 Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognised by reference to the stage 
of completion of the contract and as per the terms of the contract.

	 Power Generation					  

	 Power generated from windmills that are covered under wheeling and banking 
arrangement with the State Electricity Board/ Electricity Distribution Companies 
are consumed at factories. The monetary values of such power generated that are 
captively consumed are not recognised as revenue. 				  

	 Export entitlements					   

	 Export entitlements from Government authorities are recognised in the statement 
of profit and loss when the right to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme 
is established in respect of the exports made by the Company, and where there is 
no significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate collection of the relevant export 
proceeds.					   

	 Sale of scrap					   

	 Scrap sale is recognised as and when the Company satisfies performance obligations 
by transferring control of the promised goods to its customers. Revenue is measured 
at the transaction price  received or receivable, taking into account contractually 
defined terms of payment. It comprises of invoice value of goods after deducting 
discounts, and applicable taxes on sale

	 Interest Income					   

	 Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. EIR is the 
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the 
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to 
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial 
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates 
the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial 
instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does 
not consider the expected credit losses.					   
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	 Rental Income					   

	 Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight line basis over the 
term of the relevant lease as per Ind AS 116.					  

	 Dividend income					   

	 Dividend income is recognized when the company’s right to receive dividend is 
established by the reporting date, which is generally when shareholders approve the 
dividend.	

d)	 Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress	

	 Presentation					   

	 Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress are stated at cost, net 
of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost 
includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs of 
a qualifying asset,  if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant 
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them 
separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs 
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. 			 

	 Advances paid towards the acquisition of tangible assets outstanding at each balance 
sheet date, are disclosed as capital advances under long term loans and advances and 
the cost of the tangible assets not ready for their intended use before such date, are 
disclosed as capital work in progress.

	 Component Cost			 

	 All material/ significant components have been identified for our plant and have been 
accounted separately. The useful life of such component are analysed independently 
and wherever components are having different useful life other than plant they are 
part of, useful life of components are considered for calculation of depreciation.

	 The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised 
in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits 
embodied within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured 
reliably. The costs of repairs and maintenance are recognised in the statement of profit 
and loss as incurred.					   

	 Machinery spares/ insurance spares that can be issued only in connection with an item 
of fixed assets and their issue is expected to be irregular are capitalised. Replacement 
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of such spares is charged to revenue. Other spares are charged as revenue expenditure 
as and when consumed.	

	 Derecognition

	 Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are 
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the 
asset is derecognized.	

e)	 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment				  

	 Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over 
its useful life on a written down value method. The depreciable amount for assets is 
the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less 5% being its residual 
value.				  

	 Depreciation is provided on straight line method, over the useful lives specified in 
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.					   

	 Depreciation for PPE on additions is calculated on pro-rata basis from the date of 
such additions. For deletion/ disposals, the depreciation is calculated on pro-rata 
basis up to the date on which such assets have been discarded/ sold. Additions to 
fixed assets, costing Rs.5,000 each or less are fully depreciated retaining its residual 
value. 					   

	 The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and 
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if 
appropriate.		

f)	 Inventories					   

	 Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  Cost includes 
cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present 
location and condition. Costs are determined on weighted average method as 
follows:					   

(i) 	 Raw materials, packing materials and consumables: At purchase cost 
including other cost incurred in bringing materials/consumables to their 
present location and condition.	

(ii)	 Work-in-process and intermediates: At material cost, conversion costs and 
appropriate share of production overheads	
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(iii) 	 Finished goods: At material cost, conversion costs and an appropriate share 
of production overheads.

g)	 Financial Instruments					   

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when an entity becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.		

	 Financial assets					   

	 Initial recognition and measurement	 				  

	 All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value. However, in the case of 
financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs 
that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset are also added to  the 
cost of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery 
of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market 
place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the 
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.			 

Subsequent measurement					  

	 For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified on the basis 
of their contractual cash flow characteristics and the entity’s business model of 
managing them.

	 For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four 
categories:	

l	 Debt instruments at amortised cost				  

l	 Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 
(FVTOCI)		

l	 Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through 
profit or loss (FVTPL)				  

l	 Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive 
income (FVTOCI)				  

Debt instruments at amortised cost					   

	 The Company classifies a debt instrument as at amortised cost, if both the following  
conditions are met:					   
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a)	 The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for 
collecting contractual cash flows; and				 

b)	 Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that 
are Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) on the principal amount 
outstanding.	

	 Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking 
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that 
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance 
income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised 
in the profit or loss.					   

Debt instrument at FVTOCI					   

	 The Company classifies a debt instrument at FVTOCI, if both of the following 
criteria are met:

a) 	 The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual 
cash flows and selling the financial assets, and			 

b)	 The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.			 

	 Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured as at 
each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in 
the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes 
finance income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or 
loss in the profit and loss statement. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative 
gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to 
profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is 
reported as interest income using the EIR method.			 

Debt instrument at FVTPL	

	 The Company classifies all debt instruments, which do not meet the criteria for 
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, as at FVTPL.		

	 Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with 
all changes recognized in the profit and loss.					  
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Equity investments			 

	 All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity 
instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. Where  the 
Company makes an irrevocable election of classifying the equity instruments at 
FVTOCI, it recognises all subsequent changes in the fair value in OCI, without 
any recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit and loss, even on sale of such 
investments.					   

	 Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value 
with all changes recognized in the profit and loss.			 

	 Financial assets are measured at FVTPL except for those financial assets whose 
contractual terms give rise to cash flows on specified dates that represents SPPI, are 
measured as detailed below depending on the business model:			 
		

Classification	 Name of the financial asset		

Amortised cost	 Trade receivables, Loans given to employees  and  others,  deposits, 
interest receivable, unbilled revenue and other advances recoverable 
in cash.

FVTOCI	 Equity investments  in companies  other than subsidiaries and 
associates if an option exercised at the time of initial recognition

FVTPL	 Other investments  in  equity instruments, mutual   funds,  forward 
exchange contracts (to the extent not designated as a hedging 
instrument).

Derecognition		

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when:					   

l	 The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

l	 The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has 
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay 
to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has 
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company 
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the 
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.			 
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	 When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or 
has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has 
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, 
the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s 
continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. 
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the 
rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

	 Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is 
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount 
of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.			 

	 Impairment of financial assets					   

	 In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model 
for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and 
credit risk exposure:					   

a)	 Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., 
loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b)	 Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured at FVTOCI

c)	 Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset 
that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 
18.	

	 The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance 
on:

l	 Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and		

l	 All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 
17	

	 The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track 
changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on 
lifetime Expected Credit Loss (ECL) at each reporting date, right from its initial 
recognition.			 

	 For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the 
Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit 
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risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12 months 
ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased 
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the 
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit 
risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss 
allowance based on 12-month ECL.				 

	 Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events 
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12 months ECL is a portion 
of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 
months after the reporting date.	

	 ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company 
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to 
receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the 
cash flows, the Company considers all contractual terms of the financial instrument 
(including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the expected life 
of the financial instrument and Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other 
credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

	 ECL allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ 
expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head 
‘other expenses’ in the profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation of ECL for 
various financial instruments is described below:				  

●	 Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables 
and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, which reduces the 
net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company 
does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.	
		

●	 Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already 
reflected at fair value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its 
value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount’ 
in the OCI.				  

	 For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the company combines 
financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the 
objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in 
credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.
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	 For impairment purposes, significant financial assets are tested on individual basis at each 
reporting date. Other financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit 
risk characteristics. Accordingly, the impairment testing is done on the following basis:	

Name of the financial asset	 Impairment Testing Methodology	

Trade Receivables	 Expected Credit Loss model (ECL) is applied. The 
ECL over lifetime of the assets are estimated by using 
a provision  matrix  which  is  based  on  historical  
loss rates reflecting  current conditions and forecasts 
of future economic conditions which are grouped on 
the basis of similar credit characteristics such as nature 
of industry,  customer  segment,  past  due  status  and 
other factors that are relevant to estimate the expected 
cash loss from these assets.

Other financial assets	 When the credit risk has not increased significantly, 
12 month ECL is used to provide for impairment 
loss. When there is significant change in credit risk 
since initial recognition, the impairment is measured 
based on probability of default over the life time. If, 
in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument 
improves such that there is no longer a significant 
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then 
the  entity  reverts  to  recognising  impairment  loss 
allowance based on 12 month ECL.

	 Financial liabilities					   

	 Initial recognition and measurement					  

	 Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at 
FVTPL and as at amortised cost.					   

	 Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on 
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation 
is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

	 All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans 
and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.	
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	 The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and 
borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative 
financial instruments.

	 The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described 
below:

Financial liabilities at FVTPL					   

	 Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and 
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit 
or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading, if they are incurred for 
the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative 
financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging 
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded 
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as 
effective hedging instruments.					   

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss

	 For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes 
in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently 
transferred to profit and loss. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain 
or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised 
in the statement of profit or loss. The company has not designated any financial 
liability as at fair value through profit and loss.		

	 Loans and borrowings					   

	 After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised 
in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR 
amortisation process.		

	 Derivative financial instruments					   

	 The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange 
forward and options contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates 
on foreign currency exposures. The counterparty for these contracts is generally a 
bank.		
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	 Derivatives fair valued through profit or loss				  

	 This category has derivative financial assets or liabilities which are not designated as 
hedges.

	 Although the Company believes that these derivatives constitute hedges from an 
economic perspective, they may not qualify for hedge accounting under Ind AS 109, 
Financial Instruments. Any derivative that is either not designated a hedge, or is so 
designated but is ineffective as per Ind AS 109, is categorized as a financial asset or 
financial liability, at fair value through profit or loss.

	 Derivatives not designated as hedges are recognized initially at fair value and 
attributable transaction costs are recognized in net profit in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss when incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, these derivatives are 
measured at fair value through profit or loss and the resulting exchange gains or 
losses are included in other income. Assets / liabilities in this category are presented 
as current assets / current liabilities if they are either held for trading or are expected 
to be realized within 12 months after the Balance Sheet date.		

	 Derecognition of financial liabilities

	 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is 
discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced 
by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of 
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification 
is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new 
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the 
statement of profit or loss.

	 Reclassification of financial assets

	 The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial 
recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets 
which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are 
debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business 
model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected 
to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the 
business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to 
the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change 
in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform 
an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial 
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assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date 
which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change 
in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, 
losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.			 

The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:	

	 S.No	 Original 	 Revised	 Accounting treatment 
		  classification	 classification		

	 1	 Amortised cost	 FVTPL	 Fair value is measured at reclassification date. 	
				    Difference between previous amortized cost and 	
				    fair value is recognised in the profit or loss

	 2	 FVTPL	 Amortised Cost	 Fair value at reclassification date becomes its 
				    new gross carrying amount. EIR is calculated 
				    based on the new gross carrying amount.	

	 3	 Amortised cost	 FVTOCI	 Fair value is measured at reclassification date. 
				    Difference between previous amortised cost and 
				    fair value is recognised in OCI. No change in  
				    EIR due to reclassification.	

	 4	 FVTOCI	 Amortised cost	 Fair value at reclassification date becomes its  
				    new amortised cost carrying amount. However, 
				    cumulative gain or loss in OCI is adjusted  
				    against fair value. Consequently, the asset is 
				    measured as if it had always been measured at 	
				    amortised cost.	

	 5	 FVTPL	 FVTOCI	 Fair value at reclassification date becomes its  
				    new carrying amount. No other adjustment is 	
				    required.	

	 6	 FVTOCI	 FVTPL	 Assets continue to be measured at fair value.  
				    Cumulative gain or loss previously recognized 
				    in OCI is reclassified to P&L at the 
				    reclassification date.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance 
sheet, if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is 
an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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h)	 Foreign currency transactions and translations			 

Transactions and balances					  

	 Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the functional 
currency spot rates at the date at which the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, 
for practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate, if the average approximates the 
actual rate at the date of the transaction.					   

	 Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the 
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences 
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

	 Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are 
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary 
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates 
at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-
monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or 
loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair 
value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit 
or loss, respectively).

	 The Company enters into forward exchange contract to hedge its risk associated with 
Foreign currency fluctuations. The premium or discount arising at the inception of a 
forward exchange contract is amortized as expense or income over the life of the contract. 
In case of monetary items which are covered by forward exchange contract, the difference 
between the year end rate and rate on the date of the contract is recognized as exchange 
difference. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation of a forward exchange contract is 
recognized as income or expense for that year.

i)	 Borrowing Costs					   

	 Borrowing cost  include  interest  computed using Effective  Interest  Rate  method, 
amortisation  of  ancillary  costs  incurred  and  exchange  differences  arising  from foreign 
currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

	 Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, production 
of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset which takes substantial 
period of time to get ready for its intended use. The Company determines the amount of 
borrowing cost eligible for capitalisation by applying capitalisation rate to the expenditure 
incurred on such cost. The capitalisation rate is determined based on the weighted average 



115

LIMITEDVTM

rate of borrowing cost applicable to the borrowings of the Company which are outstanding 
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically towards purchase of the 
qualifying asset. The amount of borrowing cost that the Company capitalises during the 
period does not exceed the amount of borrowing cost incurred during that period. All other 
borrowings costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

	 Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending 
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for 
capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss 
in the period in which they are incurred.

j)	 Government Grants

	 Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a 
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the group will comply with 
all attached conditions.

	 Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are 
included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to profit or 
loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets and presented 
within other income			 

k)	 Taxes					   

	 Current income tax					   

	 Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be 
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used 
to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the 
reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable 
income.				  

	 Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised 
outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current 
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI 
or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax 
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to 
interpretation and establishes provisions where  appropriate.			

	 Deferred tax

	 Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences 
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial 
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reporting purposes at the reporting date. 

	 Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

	 Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit 
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry 
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. Where there is 
deferred tax assets arising from carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax 
created, they are recognised to the extent of deferred tax liability.

	 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will 
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised 
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the 
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred 
tax asset to be recovered.

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to 
apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax 
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting 
date.

	 Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside 
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items 
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly 
in equity.

	 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right 
exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes 
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

l)	 Retirement and other employee benefits

	 Short-term employee benefits	

	 A liability is recognised for short-term employee benefit in the period the related 
service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in 
exchange for that service.

	 Defined contribution plans

	 Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. 
The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident 
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fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme 
as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution 
payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds 
the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a 
liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid 
exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then 
excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for 
example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.	

	 Defined benefit plans

	 The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires 
contributions to be made to a separately administered fund. The cost of providing 
benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit 
method.

	 Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset 
ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability 
and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the 
net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with 
a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in 
which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent 
periods.

	 Compensated absences	

	 As per the policy of the Company, compensated absences are not entitled to be 
carried forward to the subsequent financial year and lapse at the end of the reporting 
period. Accordingly, no liability towards compensated absences are recognised in 
these financial statements.

	 Other long term employee benefits

	 Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured 
at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the 
Company in respect of services provided by the employees up to the reporting date. 	
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m)	 Leases

	 As a lessee	

a)	 Initial measurement

	 Lease liability is initially recognised and measured at an amount equal to the 
present value of minimum lease payments during the lease term that are not 
yet paid. Right-of-use asset is recognized and measured at cost, consisting 
of initial measurement of lease liability plus any lease payments made to the 
lessor at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, 
initial estimate of restoration costs and any initial direct costs incurred by the 
lessee.

b)	 Subsequent measurement

	 The lease liability is measured in subsequent periods using the effective 
interest rate method. Right-of-use asset is depreciated in accordance with 
requirements in Ind AS 16, Property, Plant and equipment. 

As a lessor

	 At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either 
an operating lease or a finance lease. The Company recognises lease payments 
received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term. In case of a finance lease, finance income is recognised over the 
lease term based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the 
lessor’s net investment in the lease.			 

n)	 Impairment of non financial assets

	 The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication 
that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual 
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s 
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s 
or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value 
in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the 
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from 
other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU 
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written 
down to its recoverable amount.
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o)	 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent asset		

	 Provisions					   

	 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal 
or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow 
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

	 Provisions are discounted, if the effect of the time value of money is material, 
using pre-tax rates that reflects the risks specific to the liability. When 
discounting is used, an increase in the provisions due to the passage of time 
is recognised as finance cost. These provisions are reviewed at each balance 
sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Necessary 
provision for doubtful debts, claims, etc., are made,  if realisation of money is 
doubtful in the judgement of the management.

	 Contingent liabilities

	 A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events 
whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of 
one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or 
a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent 
liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot 
be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities 
are disclosed separately.

	 Show cause notices issued by various Government authorities are considered 
for evaluation of contingent liabilities only when converted into demand.

	 Contingent assets					   

	 Where an inflow of economic benefits is probable, the Company discloses 
a brief description of the nature of the contingent assets at the end of the 
reporting period, and, where practicable, an estimate of their financial effect. 
Contingent assets are disclosed but not recognised in the financial statements.

p)	 Cash and cash equivalents	

	 Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash 
equivalents are short-term balances with original maturity of less than 
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3 months, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into cash, 
which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

q)	 Cash Flow Statement			 

	 Cash flows are presented using indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before 
tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any 
deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments.	

	 Cash flows are presented using indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before 
tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any 
deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments.

	 Bank borrowings are generally considered to be financing activities. However, 
where bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand form an integral part 
of an entity’s cash management, bank overdrafts are included as a component 
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash flow statement.	

r)	 Earnings per share

	 The basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit for the 
period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding during the period.  				  

	 Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted 
average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic EPS and also 
weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon 
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity 
shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at 
a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for 
each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive 
equity shares are adjusted for bonus shares, as appropriate.			 
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Regd. Office : Sulakarai, Virudhunagar – 626 003 
Email  : office@vtmill.com; Website : www.vtmill.com 
Phone : (04562) 234800/234801

Name of the member(s)	 :
Registered Address	 :
E-mail Id	 :
Folio / DP ID-Client ID No	 :

I/We being the member(s) of ……………………… shares of the above-named Company hereby appoint:

(1)	 Name ………………………………………………….  Address ……………………..……………………………..

	 Email Id …………………………………..……………Signature ………………………….....……. or failing him;

(2)	 Name …………………………………………………..Address………………………………………………….....

	 Email Id ………………………………..…...……….... Signature …………………………………………………..

As my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 77th Annual General Meeting 
of the Company, to be held on Wednesday, 24th  July, 2024 at 10.00 AM, at Sulakarai, Virudhunagar and at any 
adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:-

	 RESOLUTIONS	 Optional*

Ordinary Business	 For	 Against

1.	 Adoption of Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024		
2.	 To declare a dividend on the Equity shares.		
3.	 Re-appointment of Sri. RM Somasundaram as Director who retires by rotation.		

Special Business		

4.	 Ordinary resolution: Ratification u/s 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for  
	 ratification of fee payable to Sri A. N. Raman Cost Auditor.

Signed this ………....…. Day of …………..…….. 2024

Signature of Shareholder……………………….………

Signature of Proxy holder(s)…………………...………

Note :
1.	 This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of 

the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.
2.	 For the Resolutions, Explanatory Statement and Notes, please refer to the Notice of the 77th Annual General 

Meeting.
3.	 It is optional to put a ‘X’ in the appropriate column against the Resolutions indicated in the Box.  If you leave 

the ‘For’ or ‘Against’ column blank against any or all Resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the 
manner as he/she thinks appropriate.

4.	 Please complete all details including details of member(s) in the above box before submission.

Form No. MGT-II

PROXY FORM
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